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Notice of the AGM

NOTICE is hereby given that the 33" Annual General Meeting of ADARSH PLANT PROTECT LIMITED will be
held on Saturday, 27" September, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. at the Registered Office located at 604, GIDC Estate,
Vitthal Udyognagar-388 121, to transact the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. Toreceive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31"
March, 2025, together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and the Auditors thereon.

2. Toappoint a Director in place of Mr. Naishad Patel (DIN:00082749), Director who shall retire by rotation
and being eligibie, offers himself for reappointment.

3. Toappoint Statutory Auditors and authorize the Board of Directors to fix their remuneration.
To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following Resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

RESOLVED THAT-

(i) pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, the consent
of the Members is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of Adarsh Plant Protect Limited for
appointment of M/s Mukund & Rohit, Chartered Accouritants, Vadodara (FRN; 113375W), as the
Statutory Auditors of the Company i.e. from the conclusion of this 33" Annual General Meeting, for
the purpose of conducting statutory audit for a continuous term of 5 (five) financial years starting
from 2025-26 to 2029-30, at such remuneration as may be mutually agreed between the Statutory
Auditors and the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors of the Company from time to time in addition
to reimbursement of out of pockel expenses at actuals to be incurred by them in connection with the
audit;

(ii) the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors of the Company, are hereby authorized to revise/ alter/
modify/ amend the terms and conditions and/ or remuneration, from time to time, as may be
mutually agreed with the Auditors, during the tenure of their appointment and to do all acts, deeds
and things and to take all necessary steps and give such directions as may be necessary to give
effectto the above resolution.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

4. To approve continuation of Mr. Naishadkumar N. Patel (DIN: 00082749) as the Non-Executive
Director of the Company.

To considerand ifthought fit, to pass the following Resolution as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT-

(i) pursuant to the provisions of Sections 150, 152 and any other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Direclors) Rules, 2014
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force), read with
Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,
and on recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of
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Notice of the AGM

Directors, the consent of Members is hereby accorded for continuation of Mr. Naishadkumar
Naginbhai Patel (DIN 00082749), who has attained the age of 75 years in the financial year 2024-23,
as the Non-Executive and non-Independent Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation;

(i) the Board of Directors and the Company Secretary are hereby authorised take such steps and do all
other acts, deeds and things as may be necessary or desirable to give effect to this resolution.”

5. Toapprove Material Related Party Transactions of the Compan

To consider and, ifthought fit, to pass the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT-

(i) pursuantto Section 188 and the other applicable provisions the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
made thereunder read with Regulation 23 and such olher applicable provisions, if any, of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and subject to such
approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions as may be necessary, the consent of the Members
of the Company is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company to enter into contracts
and/ or agreements for sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials and/ or services, selling or
otherwise dispose off or buying, leasing of property of any kind, availing or rendering of any services
or any other transactlion of whatever nature with related parties as mentioned herein below, from
conclusion of this 33" Annual General Meeting till conclusion of the 34" Annual General Meeting of
the Company, in ordinary course of business and at arm's length basis for material or any other
transactions:

1. NAS Packaging Private Limited
2. Adarsh Plant Private Limited
3. Mini Sarvodyog Sira;

(ii) for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution, the Board of Direclors of the Company is hereby
authorized to do all such acls, deeds, matters and things and to give such direclions as may be
necessary or expedient and to settle any question, difficulty or doubt that may arise in this regard as
the Board in its absolute discretion may deem necessary or desirable and its decision shall be final
and binding."

6. Toappointthe Secretarial Auditor of the Company and authorise the Board of Directors to fix their
remuneration

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT-

(i)  pursuant to Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Rules
made there under read with Regulation 24 A and such other applicable provisions, if any, of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and subject to such
approvals, consents, sanctions and permissions as may be necessary, the consent of the Members
of the Company is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company for the appointment of
Mr. D. G. Bhimani, proprietor of M/s D. G. Bhimani & Associates and Company Secretary In practice,
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Notice of the AGM

as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company for conducting the secretarial audit, for a continuous
tenure of 5 (Five) years from financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30, at such remuneration
as may be mutually agreed upon between the Secretarial Auditor and Audit Committee/ Board of
Directors of the Company, from time to time in addition to reimbursement of out of pocket expenses
al actuals to be incurred by them in connection with the audit;

(i} the Board of Directors of the Company is hereby authorized to revise/ alter/ modify/ amend the terms
and conditions and/ or remuneration, from time to time, as may be mutually agreed with the Auditors,
during the tenure of their appointment and to do all acts. deeds and things and to take all necessary
steps and give such directions as may be necessary to give effect to the above resolution.”

By the Order of the Board of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Sd/-
Ms. Dhwani Shah
Date: 26" July, 2025 Company Secretary
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NOTES:

(A) The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect of the
business under Item Nos. 3 to 6 of the accompanying Notice is annexed hereto which forms part of this
Notice.

(B) Attendance Slips and Proxy Forms are annexed hereto.
(C) Members are requested:
(i)  bring their copies of Annual Report, Notice and Attendance Slip duly filled in at the time of the Meeting.

(ii) toquotetheir Folio Nos./ DP ID Nos. in all correspondence.

(D) VOTING THROUGH PROXY/(IES) OR AUTHORISED REPERESENTATIONS:

(i) AMEMBERENTITLEDTOATTENDANDVOTEISENTITLED TOAPPOINT PROXY TOATTEND AND
VOTE ON HIS BEHALF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. A person can act as proxy on
behalf of Members nol exceeding Fifty (50) and holding in aggregate not more than 10% of the tolal share
capital of the Company. AMember holding more than ten percent of the total share capital of the Company
carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as a proxy and such person shall not act as proxy for
any other Member.

(i) AN INSTRUMENT OF PROXY TO BE EFFECTIVE, MUST BE LODGED AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE TIME OF THE MEETING. A
BLANK PROXY FORMIS ANNEXED HERETO.

(iif) An instrument appointing proxy is valid only if it is properly stamped as per the applicable law. Blank or
incomplete, unstamped or inadequately stamped, undated proxy or proxies upon which the stamps have
not been cancelled will be considered as invalid. If the Company receives multiple proxies for the same
holdings of a Member, the proxy which is dated last will be considered as valid. If such multiple proxies are
not dated or they bear the same date without specific mention of time, all such multiple proxies shall be
treated as invalid.

(iv)  AProxyshall nothave aright to speak at the AGM and shall not be entitled to vote except an poll.

(E) Incase of joint holders atlending the meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order of names will be
entitled to vote, provided the votes are not already cast by remate e-voting facility by first holder.

(F) The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding, maintained under Section 170
of the Act, and the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are interested, maintained
under Section 189 of the Act, will be available electronically for inspection by the Members during the AGM. All
documents referred to in the Notice will also be avallable for electronic inspection without any fee by the
Members from the date of circulation of this Notice up to the date of AGM, i.e. 27.09.2025. Members seeking to

inspect such documents can send an email to cs@adarshplant.com or adarshplantprotect@amall.com

(G) The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the Company, for the shares held in physical form, will
remain closed from Sunday, 21" September, 2025 to Tuesday, 23" September, 2025 (both days inclusive).

(H) The relevant information of the Director seeking re-appointment, as raquired under Regulation 36(3) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with the revised Secretarial
Slandard-2 (55-2) on General Meetings, is provided in the seclion relating to the Corporate Governance.
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Notice of the AGM

() Members seeking any information with regard to the accounts or any matter to be placed at the AGM, are
requested to write to the Company at least TEN days before the AGM so as to enable the Management to keep
the information ready at the Meeting, mentioning their name, demat account number/ folio number, email id,

mobile number through email at cs@adarshplant.com or adarshplantprotect@gmail.com. The same will be
replied by the Company suitably in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

(J) As per Regulation 40 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2025, as
amended, securities of listed companies can be transferred only in dematerialized form with effect from, 17 April,
2019, except in case of request received for transmission or transposition of securities. Members holding the
shares in physical form are requested to dematerialize their holdings at the earliest as it will not be possible to
transfer shares held in physical mode. Members can contact the Company or Company's Registrar and
Transfer Agents, MUFG Intime India Private Limited via email at ahmedabad@in.mpms.mufg.com

(K) Pursuant to the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD/P/Cir/2025/97 dated 02™ July, 2025, a one-
time special window has been opened enly for the re-lodgement of transfer deeds, which were lodged prior to
01" April, 2019 and rejected/ returned/ not attended due to deficiency in the documents/ process/ otherwise.
This special window shall remain opened for a period of six months from 07" July, 2025 to 06" January,
2026. Accordingly, all eligible shareholders are requested to submit their share transfer deeds along with
requisite documents to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) at MUFG Intime India Private
Limited, Unit: Adarsh Plant Protect Limited, 506-508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1), 05" Floor, Besides
Gala Business Centre, Off C G Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380009, Phone No.: (079)

bt L B S o ke

(L) Members holding shares in their single name are advised to make a nomination in respect of their shareholding
in the Company. Nomination facility is available to -

(i)  Members holding shares in physical form by filing Form SH-13 with the Company’s Registrar and Share
Transfer Agent. Form SH-13 shall be provided on request.

(i)  Members holding shares in dematernialized form by lodging their request with their DPs.

(M) The Notice of the Annual General Meeting along with the Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 is being
sent only by eleclronic mode to those Members whose email addresses are registered with the Company/ RTA/
Depositories in accordance with the related MCA circulars and SEBI circulars. Members may note that the
Notice of Annual General Meeting and Annual Report for the financial year 2024-25 will also be available on the
Company's website: www.adarshplantprotect.com; and on the website of BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com

and on the website of Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent, Link Intime India Pvt Lid, ie.,
hitps:/(instaweb.in.mpms.mufg.com/

(N) Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested 1o register the same with the
Company or MUFG Intime India Pvt. Lid. for receiving all communication electronically from the Company.

(0) Members are requested to notify immediately:
(i)Any change in their residential address.

(i) Income-tax Permanent Account Number (PAN).

(P) Non-resident Members are requested to inform their Depository Participants/ Link Intime India Pvt. Ltd.,
immediately of-
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(i)  changeintheirresidential status to India for permanent settiement;

(i) particulars of their bank account(s) maintained in India with complete name, branch, account type,
account number and address of bank, with pin code number.

(Q) Shareholders holding shares in more than one folios are requested to write to the Registrar and Share Transfer
Agent of the Company, enclosing their Share Certificates, for consolidation of their folios.

(R} Remote E-Vioting through electronic means

1. Inaccordance with Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended to date} and Regulation 44 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company is offering Remote E-voting facility as an
alternate, to all the Members of the Company, to cast their votes electronically on all resolutions set forth
in the Notice herein.

2. Remote E-votingis optional.

3.  The Members who have cast their votes electronically prior to the AGM may attend the AGM but shall not
be entitled to cast their vote again.

4. Voling rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of the shares registered in the name(s) of the
Member(s) on the cut-off date. Votes once cast shall not be allowed to change subsequently.

5. Ihe instructions and other information relating to Remote E-voting are as under:

The remote e-voting period commences on Wednesday, 24" September, 2025 (9:00 a.m. IST) and ends
on Friday, 26" September, 2025 (5:00 p.m. IST). The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to
their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being Saturday, 20"
September, 2025. Thereafter, the Remote E-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL. The Members,
whose names appear in the Register of Members/ Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date)
l.e. Saturday, 20" September, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. A person, who is not a Member as
on the cul-off date, should treal this Nolice of AGM for information purpose only.

6. Howdo lvote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system?

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned
below:!

Step 1: Accessto NSDL e-Voting system
A) Login method fore-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020, an e-Voling facility is provided by Listed
Companies. Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through
their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are
advised to update their mobile number and email id in their demat accounts in order to access e-

Voting facility.

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below:
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Notice of the AGM

Type of shareholders Login Method

Individual Shareholders | 1.  Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL viz.
holding securities in hitps:/feservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computerorona
demat mode with NSDL mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the "Beneficial

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under '[DeAS'
section, this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and
Password. After successiul authentication, you will be able to see
e-Voling services under Value added services. Click on "Access
to e-Voling" under e-Voling services and you will be able to see e-
Voting page. Click on Company name or e-Voting service
provideri.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voling website
of NSDL for casting your vote during the remole e-Voting period.
Ifyou are not registerad for IDeAS e-Services, oplion to register is
available at hitps:/feservices nsdl.com.

Select "Register Online for |1DeAS Portal” or click at
hitps:/leservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/ldeasDireclReq jsp

Individual Shareholders | 2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing

holding securities in the following URL: hitps://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a
dermat mode with NSDL Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-

Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login”™ which is
available under "Sharehelder/ Member' section. Anew screen will
open. You will have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen-digi
demat account number hold with NSDL), Password/ OTP and a
Verification Code as shown on the screen. After successful
authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site
wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on Company name or
e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to
e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote

e-Voling period.
Individual Shareholders | 3.  Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App
holding securities in "NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned
demat mode with NSDL below for seamless voting experience.

NSDL Mobile App is available on

.' App Store B Google Play
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Type of shareholders

Login Method

Individual Shareholders
holding securities in
demat mode with CDSL

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login
through their existing user id and password. Option will be made
available to reach e-Voling page without any further
authentication. The users to login Easi/ Easiest are requesled to
visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon &
MNew System Myeasi Tab and then use your existing my easi
usermname & password.

2. Aftersuccessfullogin the Easi/ Easiest user will be able to see the
e-Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in
progress as per the information provided by Company. On
clicking the evoting option, the user will be able to see e-Voling
page of the e-Voting service provider for casling your vote during
the remole e-Voling period. Additionally, there is also links
provided to access the system of all e-Voling Service Providers,
so that the user can visit the e-Voling service providers' website
directly.

3. Ifthe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is
available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login
& New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4.  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voling page by

providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voling
link available on www.cdslindia.cam home page. The system will
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile &
Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful
authentication, user will be able to see the e-\oting option where
the e-voting is in progress and also able to directly access the
system of all e-Voting Service Providers.

Individual Shareholders
(holding securities in
demat mode) login
through their deposilory
participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account
through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/ CDSL for e-
Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be able lo see e-Voting option.
Click on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/ CDSL
Depository sile after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-
Voting feature. Click an Company name or e-\oling service provideri.e.
NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting
your vote during the remote e-Voting period.
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget
User 1D and Forget Password option avallable at abovementioned website.

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical
issues related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL.

Login type Helpdesk details

Individual Shareholders| Members facing any technical Issue in login can conlact NSDL
holding securities in| helpdesk by sending a request at evoting@nsdl.com or call at
demat mode with NSDL 022-4886 7000

Individual Shareholders| Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL

holding securities in| helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoling@cdslindia.com
demat mode with CODSL or contact attoll free no. 1800 22 55 33

B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding
securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode.

How to Log-into NSDL e-Voting website?

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL:
hitps://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon "Login” which is available
under 'Shareholder/Member’ section,

3. Anew screen will open. You will have lo enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification
Code as shown on the soreen.

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices I.e. |IDEAS, you can log-in at
hitps://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices
after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your
vole electronically.

4. Your User|D details are given below :

Manner of holding shares i.e. Your User ID is:
Demat (NSDL or CDSL) or Physical

a) For Members who hold shares in |8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client 1D
demat account with NSDL. For example, if your DP ID is IN300™ and Client ID is

127""* then your user |D is IN300™ 1 2%,

b) For Members who hold shares in |16 Digit Beneficiary 1D
demat accountwith CDSL. For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 12************** then
your user | jg {2 rermrermanes

c) For Members holding shares in [EVEN Number followed by Folio Number registered with
Physical Form, the Company

For example, if folio numberis 001*** and EVEN is 101456
thenuser D is 101456001***
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8.
9.

Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:

a) Ifyou are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login
and cast your vote.

b) Ifyou are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your 'initial password', you
need to enter the 'initial password' and the system will force you to change your password.

c) Howtoreirieve your 'initial password'?

(1) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the Company, your 'initial
password' is communicated to you on your emaill ID. Trace the email sent to you from
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachmenti.e. a .pdffile. Open
the .pdffile. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client |D for NSDL account,
last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares held in physical
form. The .pdffile contains your 'User |D' and your ‘initial password'.

(i) If your email 1D is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for
those shareholders whose email ids are nol registered.

If you are unable lo retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten your
password:

a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?" (If you are holding shares in your demat
accountwith NSDL or CDSL ) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

b} Physical User Reset Password 7" (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com.

c) Ifyouarestillunable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at
evoling@nsdl.com mentioning your demal account number/folio number, your PAN, your
name and your registered address elc.

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on
the e-Voting system of NSDL.

After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check
box.

Now, you will have to click on "Login” button.
After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open.

Step 2 : Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system.

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system?

1.

R

After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies "EVEN" in which you are
holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status.

Select “EVEN 135183" of Company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-
Voting period.

Now you are ready for e-Voling as the Voling page opens.

Caslyour vole by selecling appropriate options i.e. assentor dissent, verify/modify the number of
shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on "Submit” and also "Confirm” when
prompted.

Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.

You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the
confirmation page.

Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allewed to modify your vote.
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General Guidelines for shareholders

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI elc.) are required to send scanned copy
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the
duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to
dgbhimani@yahoo.co.in with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.com and cs@adarshplant.com. Institutional
shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution/ Power of
Attorney/ Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution/ Authority Letter” displayed under
"e-Voting" tab in their login.

2. Itisstrongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your
password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in
the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the "Forgot User Delails/Password?" or
"Physical User Resel Password?" option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting
user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886
7000 or send a request lo Ms. Pallavi Mhatre at evoling@nsdl.com

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id
and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice:

1. Incase shares are held in physical mode, please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the
share cerlificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested
scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to cs@adarshplant.com

2. Incase shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16-digit DPID + CLID or 16-digit beneficiary
ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN
card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to cs@adarshplant.com. If you are an Individual
shareholder holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained al step

1(A)l.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode.

3. Alternatively, shareholder/Members may send a request to evoling@nsdl.com for procuring user id and
password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents.

By the Order of the Board of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Sd/-

Ms. Dhwani Shah
Date: 26" July, 2025 Company Secretary
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Notice of the AGM

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

ITEMNO.3

The tenure of 5 (five) years of Rajani Shah & Co., Charlered Accountants (FRN: 0121126W) who had been appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of your Company shall expire on commencement of the ensuing 33" Annual General Meeting
of the Company.

M/s Mukund & Rohit, Chartered Accountants, Vadodara (FRN: 113375W) have been proposed to be appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of your Company in this 33" Annual General Meeting of the Company for the purpose of conducting
statutory audit for a continuous period on 5 (Five) years from financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30. The
Audilors have provided their consent and have confirmed that they are not disqualified from being appointed as
Auditors of the Company. As required under Regulation 33(1)(d) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Auditors have also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the
Peer Review Board of the Institute of Charlered Accountants of India to hold the office as Auditors of the Company,

The proposed remuneration to be paid to M/s Mukund & Rohit for their audit services shall as mutually decided by the
Statutory Auditors and the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors of the Company in addition to out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by the Statutory Auditors.

The Members are requested to consider appointment of M/s Mukund & Rohit, Chartered Accountants, Vadodara
(FRN: 113375W) as the Statutory Auditor of the Company in the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company for
the period of 5 years |.e. from the financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30.

The Board recommends the appointment of the Statutory Auditor of the Company for the period of five years and to
pass the resolution as setoutin Item No. 3 of the Notice as an Ordinary Resolution(s).

None of the Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are interested either financially or
otherwise in above Resolution.

The Explanatory Statement is and should be treated as an abstract and part of the Notice as per applicable provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013, as amended,

ITEMNO.4

Mr, Naishadkumar N. Palel has allained the age of 75 years in financial year 2024-25. Hence, in pursuance lo the
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder read with Regulations 17(1A) of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 2015, a special resolution is required for his appointment of
and his continuation as the Non-Executive and non-Independent Director of the Company beyond the age of 75 years.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company has also recommended for continuation of
appointment of Mr, Naishadkumar N. Patel as the Non-Execulive and non-Independent Director of the Company,
liable to retire by rotation, in terms of his experience in the industry in which your Company is working and his valuable
inputs and efforts in the growth of your Company. A briel profile of Mr. Naishadkumar N. Patel is attached herewith for
your reference.

The Board of Directors recommends the resolution as set out in tem no. 4 as special resolution for approval of the
Members for continuation of appointment of Mr. Naishadkumar N. Patel as the Non-Executive non-Independent
Director of the Company.
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None of the Directors and / or Key Managerial Personnel, except Mr. Naishad Patel, Mr. Atish Patel and Mrs. Jyotika
Patel, andtheirrelatives, are concerned orinterested, either financially or otherwise, in this Resolution.

The Explanatory Statement is and should be treated as an abstracl as per applicable provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, as amended.

ITEMNO.5

The Company proposes to enter in to transactions with various related parties after confirming to the requirements of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 & the Companies Act, 2013. As your
Company may enter into transactions with Related Parties which may exceed 10% of the Annual Turnover of the
Company as per the last Audited Financial Statements, the Company has to take approval from the Members of the
Company through Special Resolution before entering in to any material transactions with the related parties. In the
above context, the necessary Special Resolution is proposed for the approval of the Members. The transactions have
been approved by the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors, subject to approval of Members of the Company
passing Special Resolution as per the requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 & the Companies Act, 2013. The particulars as to the relaled party transactions are furnished below
as per the requirements of the prescribed Rules and the grounds for having the transactions. All contracts will be
subject to the conditions that the prescribed price/ charge payable under the contracts shall be competitive, shall be
based on prevailing market price, shall not be prejudicial to the interests of either party and shall be at arm's length, on
the basis of comparable uncontrolled price other than with associate enterprise. The following table shows the
maximum amount up to which the Company can enter with the refated party during the approved period.

Name of the Related Party NAS Packaging Private Limited
Name of the Director /KMP who is related, ifany | Naishadkumar Patel
Atish Patel
Jyotika Patel
Nature of relationship Interested as Directors/ Shareholders/ Relatives of
Directars
Nature, Material Terms, Monetary value | | Transaction type Amount (Rs.)
and particulars of the contractor arrangement Sale of Raw material/ Finished goods/ 5 Crore
Bought outitems
Purchase of Raw material/ Finished 5 Crore
goods/ Bought outitems
Availing services of processing raw b Crore
material
Rendering services of labor jobf job work 6 Crore
To take on Lease Land and building & 1 Crore
Plant and Machinery.
Tenure of contract The Contract would be for a period of 1 year starting from the
date of approval in the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
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Name of the Related Party Adarsh Plant Private Limited

Name of the Director [KMP whoiis related, ifany | Naishadkumar Patel
Alish Patel

Jyotikaben Patel
Nature of relationship Interested as Directors/ Shareholders

Nature, Material Terms, Monetary value and | | Transaction Amount (Rs.)
particulars of the contract or arrangement Sale of Raw material/ Finished goods/ 10 Crore
Boughtoutitems

Purchase of Raw materiall Finished 1 Crore
goods/ Bought outitems

Availing services of processing raw 1 Crore
material

Rendering services of labor job/ job work 1 Crore

Tenure of contract The Contract would be for a period of 1 year starting from the
date of approvalin the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

Name of the Related Party M/s Mini Sarvodyog Sira
Name of the Director [KMP who Naishadkumar Pate!
is related, If any Atish Patel
Jyotikaben N Patel
Nature of relationship Interested as Partners
Nature, Material Terms, Monetary value and Transaction type Amount (Rs.)
particulars of the contract or arrangement Sale of Raw material/ Finished goods/ 5 Crore
Boughtoutitems
Purchase of Raw malerial/ Finished 20 Crore
goods/ Bought outitems
Availing services of processing raw 10 Crore
material
Rendering services of labar job/ job work 5 Crore
Tenure of contract

The Contract would be for a period of 1 year starting from the
date of approvalin the ensuing Annual General Meeting.

The Board recommends lo pass the resolution as set oul in ltem no. 5 as special resolution in the interests of the
Company. None of the Direclors and / or Key Managerial Personnel, except Mr. Naishad Patel, Mr. Atish Patel and
Mrs. Jyotika Patel, and their relatives, are concerned or interested, either financially or otherwise, in this Resolution,

The Explanatory Statement is and should be treated as an abstract and part of the Notice as per applicable provisions
ofthe CompaniesAcl, 2013, as amended,

oy



Notice of the AGM

ITEMNO.6

In accordance with Regulation 24A of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations,
2015, the Company is required to appoint a peer reviewed secretarial auditor for a continuous period of 5 years from
financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30, subject to the approval of the shareholders in the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting of the Company.

In view of the same, the Board of Directors proposes to appoint Mr. D. G. Bhimani, proprietor- D. G. Bhimani and
Associales, practicing Company Secretary, Anand for his appointment as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company in
the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company for conducting secretarial audit for a continuous period of 5
years i.e. from the financial year 2025-26 to the financial year 2029-30.

Further, the Company has received consent, eligibility certificate and peer review certificate from Mr. D. G. Bhimani,
Company Secretary, Anand, to the effect that his appointment, if made, would be in accordance with the Companies
Act, 2013 and the Rules framed there under and that they satisfy the criteria provided in section 204 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015.

The proposed remuneration to be paid to Mr. D. G. Bhimani for their audit services shall as mutually decided by the
Secretarial Auditor and the Audit Committee/ Board of Directors of the Company in addition to out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by the Secretarial Auditor.

The Members are requested to consider appointment of Mr. D. G. Bhimani, proprietor- D. G. Bhimani and Associates,
Practicing Company Secretary, Anand as the Secretarial Auditor of the Company in the ensuing Annual General
Meeting of the Company for the period of 5 yearsi.e. from the financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30.

The Board recommends the appointment of the Secrelarial Auditor of the Company for the period of five years and to
pass the resalution as setout in ltem No. 6 of the Notice as an Ordinary Resolution(s).

None of the Directors and/ or Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are interested either financially or
otherwise in above Resolution.

The Explanatory Statement is and should be treated as an abstract and part of the Notice as per applicable provisions
of the CompaniesAcl, 2013, as amended.

By the Order of the Board of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Sd/-
Ms. Dhwani Shah
Date: 26" July, 2025 Company Secretary
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ANNEXURE TO THE EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Details of personnel seeking appointment at the 33" Annual General Meeting as required under the SEBI (Listing
Otligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 are as follows:

Particulars Mr. Naishad Patel

Date of Birth 06.04.1950

Date of 1 # Appointment | 11.04.1994

on the Board

Qualifications B.E.

Expertise He has been working in the field on engineering since last 40+ years,

possessing rich experience and expertise in the Management and Leadership
is useful to the Company in taking various strategic business decisions.

Company

Directorships held in other | None
public companies
No. of shares held in the | 4025000 shares

Relations with Other Directors

He Is the spouse of Mrs. Jyotika Patel and father of Mr. Atish Patel, who are the
Directors of the Company. :

Pecuniary Relations with the
Company

Following companies/ entities, in which Mr. Naishad Patel has direct/ indirect
interest, have pecuniary relations with the Company, in accordance with
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder and
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
« NAS Packaging Private Limited

« NipponAppliances Private Limited

+ Adarsh Plant Private Limited

+ Mini Sarvodyog Sira

« S.K.Finance

« J.K. Securities Private Limited




Company profile

Adarsh Plant Protect Limited (APPL) is a professionally managed company under the visionary
leadership of Mr Naishad Patel and dynamic leadership of Mr Atish Patel. We offer products in industrial
packaging (Barrels), Agriculture equipment and Smokeless chulhas. APPL has an in house research and
product development center to design innovative products. We are committed to becoming an industry
leader, implementing next-generalion ideas and experience to reinvent the traditional ways of operaling in
industry-specific sectors.

N -
v ooo
| 4

30+ years of Legacy 2 manufacturing unit 3+ certification
B :4;} B ! l_'.\trv

In-house Research 50,000+ sq ft 20+ product

and Development manufacturing facility of Portfolio
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Message from Chairperson's desk

"Empowering Growth,
Driving Innovation,
and Building
Resilience for a
Future-Ready
Enterprise”

Dear Esteemed Members,

| welcome you all at the 33" Annual General Meeting of your Company. On behalf of the Board of Directors of Adarsh, |
thank you all for your trust and support as we continue to work through the challenges before us.

In the ever-evolving packaging sector in India, we have witnessed a decade of rapid growth, facing various challenges
and triumphs along the way. India's economic outiook for 2025 reflects cautious optimism, amidst the backdrop of
persisting external headwinds. The impact of USA's tariff impositions on India's exports on various sectors including
pharmaceutical and chemical industries may have some effect on our Company's products. During the reporting
period, the Company has experienced a decline in overall performance due to reduced demand driven by a volatile
global economy and geopolitical uncertainties.

However, our experience spanning over 33 years reassures us that we will have all the necessary enablers to resume
our growth— this confidence stems from our deep expertise and business resillence.

The future of the India industrial drums market appears promising, propelled by burgeoning e-commerce,
pharmaceutical, and food industries. With the rise in demand for safe and durable packaging solutions, the market is
likely to witness strong growth.

At Adarsh, with a view to increase its share in the industrial packaging market, we have shifted our focus from MS
Barrel to Insulated Composite Barrel so as to provide reliable packaging that mitigates temperature variation for
temperature sensitive products which leads to longer shelf life of the material stored therein.

Lastly, | would like to assure to all the stakeholders that your Company shall make rigorous efforts to achieve its-

+  MISSION to outperform its benchmarks for achieving higher excellence which has been engraved in our work
culture DNA; and

+ VISION for creating an enterprise that integrates innovation and technology to deliver high quality product
with highest customer satisfaction and to become industry leaders by re-inventing the traditional ways of
operating across industries that we serve.

In closing, | would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere gratitude to our Board members for their
continued guidance and support, and to all the stakeholders for the trust they have reposed in our Company., | also
extend my thanks to our team members for their contributions to the growth and success of the organisation. Together,
we can overcome the challenges of our journey and shape a better tomorrow for all.

Thank You,

Sd/-

Mr. Naishad Patel
Chairperson

Adarsh Plant Protect Limited
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Board Report

Dear Members,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 33" Annual Report together with the Audited Standalone Financial

Statements for the Financial Year ended 31" March, 2025

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

(Rs. in lakhs)
PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 1749.70 1864.90
Other Income 0.95 0.28
Total Revenue 1750.65 1865.18
Profit before Finance Costs, Depreciation, Exceptional
Items, Extraordinary Items and Tax (84.25) 75.87
Less: Finance Cosls 20.45 20.88
e e oo | suss
Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 7.19 6.39
Profit before Exceptional ltems, Extraordinary Items and Tax (111.89) 48.60
Less: Exceptional ltems and Extraordinary Iltems 0.00 0.00
Profit before Tax (111.89) 48.60
Less: Currenl Tax, net of earlier year adjustments 0.00 0.00
Less: Deferred Tax 0.00 0.00
Profit after tax for the financial year (A) (111.89) 48.60
Total Other Comprehensive Income/ Loss (B) 0.44 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the financial year (111.46) 48.60
(A+B)
Earnings Per Share (EPS in Rupees)
Basic (1.13) 0.49
Diluted (1.13) 0.49

*Previous year's figures are reslated, regrouped, rearranged and recasl, wherever considered necessary.

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
Your Company's lurnover for the year is Rs. 1749.70 Lakhs as against Rs. 1864.90 Lakhs in the preceding year.

During the reporting period, the Loss for the year stands at Rs. (111.48) Lakhs compared to previous year's Profit of
Rs. 48.60 Lakhs.

During the reporting period, certain advances and trade receivables assessed as irrecoverable amounting to Rs.
119.52 lakhs, have been written off and have been recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss.
Further, during the FY 2024-25, your Company has experienced a decline in overall performance due to reduced
demand driven by a volatile global economy and geopolitical uncertainties. It's reflected in reduced production and
iInancial losses.

Despite these challenges, we continue to focus on cost control and operational efficiency to strengthen future
performance and is determined to recover the said irrecoverable amounts in future and shall undertake reasonable
efforts for the same.
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DIVIDEND
Consequent to loss in financial year 2024-25, the Board has not recommended any dividend.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Your Company has not transferred any amount to the General Resarves.

DISCLOSURES RELATING TO SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES
Your Company doesn'l have any subsidiary, associates and joint venlures for the financial year under review.

SHARE CAPITAL
Your Company's Paid-up Share Capital as on 31" March, 2025 was Rs. 991.15 lakhs, comprising of 99,11,500 equity
shares of Rs.10 each, fully paid up.

During the financial year under review-

(1) your Company has not issued any shares with differential rights and hence no information as per the provisions
of Section 43(a)(il) of the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act”) read with Rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share Capital and
Debenture) Rules, 2014 has been furnished.

(i) your Company has not Issued any sweat equity shares during the financial year under review and hence no
information as per the provisions of Section 54(1)(d) of the Act read with Rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share
Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 has been furnished.

(ili) your Company has not issued any equity shares under any Employees Stock Option Scheme during the
financial year under review and hence no information as per the provisions of Section 62(1)(b) of the Act read
with Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debenture) Rules, 2014 has been furnished.

(iv) there were no instances of non-exercising of voting rights in respect of shares purchased directly by employees
under a scheme pursuant to Section 67(3) of the Act read with Rule 16(4) of Companies (Share Capital and
Debentures) Rules. 2014 and hence no information in connection therewith has been furnished.

(v) vour Company has not bought back its shares, pursuant to the provisions of Section 68 of Companies Act, 2013
and Rules made thereunder.

(vi) your Company has not issued Equity Sharas with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise, pursuant
ta the provisions of Section 43 of Companies Acl, 2013 and Rules made thereunder during the year.

(vii) your Company has not made any provisions of money or has not provided any loan to the employees of the
Company for purchase of shares of the Company or its holding Company, pursuant to the provisions of Section
67 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder.

DEPOSITS

Your Company has not accepted/ renewed any deposits from the public or the Members, within the meaning of
Section 73 of the Act read with Chapter V of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, during
the financial year 2024-25, and as such no amount of principal or interest on deposit from public or Members, was
outstanding as of the Balance Sheet date.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES, INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES
During the financial year under review, your Company hasn't made any loans, guarantees, investments and securities
inaccordance with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Your Company has adopled a policy on Related Party Transactions and the said Policy is available in Policies section

on www.adarshplant.com by accessing the web-link https://adarshplant.com/policy/
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During the financial year under review, your Company has entered into related party transactions on an arm's length
basis and in the ordinary course of business and which were in compliance with Section 188 of the Act and the Rules
made thereunder and the SEBI| (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 [LODR
Regulations]. The details of the same are provided in Form AOC-2 annexed hereto as Annexure-l, which forms part of
this Report.

Further, prior approvals of the Audit Committee/ Board and/ or shareholiders are obtained on an annual basis for all
such contracts/ arrangements/ transaclions and the same are placed before the Audit Committee/ Board on quarterly
basis for review and noting.

PARTICULARS RELATING TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN
EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO

The Company in its regular course of business is vigilant to conserve the resources and continuously implements
measures required to save energy. The Company has strong commitment towards conservation of energy, natural
resources and adoption of latest technology in its areas of operation.

The particulars as required under the provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption, foreign exchange earnings
and oulgo, etc. are furnished in the Annexure-Il, which forms part of this Report.

PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

A. Considering the financial performance of the Company, your Company doesn't pay any salary to the Managing
Director of the Company. Also, Mr. Ashok Padhiyar, the erstwhile Chief Financial Officer of the Company has
resigned with effect from 01.12.2024, whilst Mr, Himanshu Bhoi has been appointed as the Chief Financial
Officer of the Company with effect from 01" December, 2024. Hence, the details of the ratio of the remuneration
of each key managerial personnel viz. Managing Director, Chief financial Officer and Company Secretary of the
Company, to the median remuneration of the employees and other details as required pursuant to Section
197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 haven't been provided in this Report.

B. Thedetails of the top 10 employees of the Company in terms of remuneration drawn as required under Seclion
134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed hereto in Annexure-lll and form part of this Report.

C. None ofthe employees of the Company has drawn remuneration of Rs. 1,02,00,000 or more per annum or Rs.
8.50,000 or more per month or for any part of the year and hence the particulars required to be disclosed under
Section 134 of the Act read with Rule 5(2) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not required to be furnished.

D. None of the employees of the Company, employed throughout the year under review or part thereof, was in
receipt of remuneration which was in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or Whole-time Director or
Manager and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than two percent of the
equity shares of the Company.

\ =



Board Report

ANNUALRETURN

The Annual Return of the Company, prepared in accordance with the provisions of Section 134 of the Act, is available
on the Company’s website: www.adarshplant.com by accessing the web-link htlps://adarshplant.com/shareholiders/

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT [BRR]

The provisions of Regulation 34(2) of the LODR Regulations read with SEBI Circular No. CIR/ CFD/CMD/10/2015
dated 4" November 2015, regarding the Business Responsibility Report detailing the various initiatives taken by the
Company on the environmental, social and governance front, aren't applicable to your Company. Hence, the same
hasn't been annexed hereto.

However, your Company does slrive for the initiatives regarding environmental, social and governance activities as its
contribution towards the society.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(C) of the LODR Regulations, the Report on
Corporate Governance is annexed hereto in Annexure-V and forms part of this Report. Your Company is committed to
transparency in all its dealings and places high emphasis on business ethics.

The requisite Compliance Certificate as required under Part E of Schedule V of the LODR Regulations, issued by Mr.
D. G. Bhimani (C P No, 6628), proprietor of M/s. D. G. Bhimani & Associates, Practising Company Secretaries, Anand
confirming to the compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance, is also annexed hereto which forms part of
this Report.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V(B) of the LODR Regulations, the Report on Management
Discussion and Analysis is annexed hereto in Annexure-VI and forms part of this Report.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Your Company follows well-established and detailed risk assessment and minimisation procedures, which are
periodically reviewed by the Board.

Your Company recognizes the importance of managing risk in the business to sustain growth. Your Company has
entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility of implementing and monitoring of the Risk Management

procedures on a periodic basis.

DIRECTORS'RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

Pursuant to the requirement under Section 134(3)(c) read with 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors of
your Company confirm that :

(a) the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material
departures, if any, in the preparation of the annual accounts;

(b) appropriate accounting policies have been selected and applied consistently and judgments and eslimates
have been made thal are reasonable and prudent 5o as lo give a lrue and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period;

(c) proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and otherirregularities;
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(d) theannual accounts have been prepared on a going concem basis;

(e) proper internal financial controls have been laid down and followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; and

(f)  proper systems to ensure compliance wilth the provisions of all the applicable laws have been devised and that
such systems were adequale and are working effectively.

DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIALPERSONS

The Directors of your Company are well experienced with expertise in their respective fields of technical, finance,
strategic and operational management and administration. None of the Directors of your Company are disqualified
under the provisions of Section 164(2)(a) and (b) of the Act. During the period under review, no Non-Executive Director
of your Company had any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company except as stated in this Report and
in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

Mr. Naishad Patel (DIN 00082749), the Non-Executive and non-Independent Director, is retiring by rotation and being
eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. A brief profile of Mr. Naishad
Patel has been given in the Notice convening the Annual General Meeting.

During the year under review, , the 2™ term of Mr. Arvind Shah (DIN: 00084091) has expired along with the conclusion
of the 32" Annual General Meeting of the Company. Mr. Chandrashekhar S. Trivedi (DIN: 10710050) has been
appointed as the Independent Director of the Company, for a tenure of 5 years with effect from the conclusion of the
32" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 14" September, 2024,

The day-to-day operations of your Company are managed by its Key Managerial Persons ("KMP") viz. the Managing
Director, the Chief Financial Officer [CFO] and the Company Secretary. During the year under review, Mr. Ashok
Padhiyar, the erstwhile Chief Financial Officer has resigned from the Company with effect from 017 December, 2024;
and Mr. Himanshu Bhol has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer of the Company with effect from 01"
December, 2024,

As required under the provisions of Section 203 of the Act, Mr. Atish Patel (DIN 00084015), Managing Director, Mr.
Himanshu Bhol, Chief Financial Officer, and Ms. Dhwani Shah, Company Secretary are the Key Managerial
Personnel of your Company as on the date of this Report.

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has formulated the Policy relating to the appointment and
remuneration of the Directors of your Company, laying down criteria for detarmining qualification, positive attributes,
independence of directors, etc. Salient fealures of the said Policies are provided as Annexure IV hereto, which forms
part of this Reporl. The Policy Is available on the Company's websile: www.adarshplant.com in Palicy seclion by
accessing the web-link: hitps://adarshplant.com/ policy/

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND COMMITTEES FORMED THEREUNDER

The Board of Direclors has constituted the following Commitlees:

y 3 Audit Commitlee
2. Stakeholders Relationship Committee
3. Nomination and Rermnuneration Committee

The details related to the composition of the Board of the Company and the Committees formed by it and meetings
conducted during the year under review are given in the Corporate Governance Report annexed hereto and forming

part of this Report.
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CONFIRMATIONBY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

The Independent Directors have confirmed that they have registered their names in the data bank maintained with the
Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (ICA’) and have also cleared the online proficiency self-assessment test, if
required, conducted by the IICAwithin a period of two years from the date of inclusion of their names in the data bank in
accordance with Section 150 of the Act read with Rule 6(4) of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors are required to undertake.

Further, the Board is of the opinion that the Independent Directors of the Company possess requisite qualifications,
proficiency experience and expertise and they hold highes! standards of integrity.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF THE DIRECTORS

During the financial year 2024-25, the Beard of Directors of your Company has carried oul an Annual Performance
Evaluation of the Board, its Committees and all the individual Directors as per the Company's Policy for Performance
Evaluation of Directors. Performance evaluation sheels were distributed prior to the Meeting dates. The cutcome of
the above exercise of performance evaluation of all the Direclors collectively and individually and the Board/
Committees was noted in the respective Meetings.

(i) The Board, in its Meeting held 8" May, 2024, has carried out the evaluation task of the Committees formed by
the Board and the Independent Directors individually for the period from 1% April, 2023 to 31" March, 2024. In
accordance with the provisions of the Section 149 of the Acl read with Schedule IV, annual performance
evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board of Directors, excluding the
Directors being evaluated.

The performance of each Independent Director has been evaluated on various parameters like ethics/ values,
inter-personal skills, competence and general administration, liaison skills, participation in meetings, etc. The
Board was salisfied thal each of the Independent Directors has been acling professionally and has brought
his/ her rich experience in the deliberations of the Board.

(if) The Independent Directors, in their separate Meeting held on 8" May, 2024, carried out the performance
evaluation of all the non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole, with special attention to the
performance of the Chairperson of the Company for the period from 1" April, 2023 to 31" March, 2024. The
various criteria considered for purpose of evaluation included composition of the Board, ethics/ values, inter-
personal skills, competence and general administration, liaison skills, participation in meetings, etc. The
Independent Directors were of the view that the Chairperson and all the other non-Independent Directors
were competent and the results of the evaluation were salisfactory and adequate to meet your Company's
requirements. They also evaluated the system of the Company related to timeliness of the information
provided to the Board-Committees, compliance with the Codes and Policies formulated by the Company, and
were satisfied with the same.

(li)  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee, in its Meeting held on 8" May, 2024, reviewed the
performance of the Executive Directors of the Company with special attention to the leadership crileria for the
Managing Director for the period from 1" April, 2023 to 31" March, 2024. The various criteria considered for
purpose of evaluation included ethics/ values, inter-personal skills, competence and general administration,
liaison skills, participation in meetings, etc. The Committee was of the view that the Managing Director was
capable and the results of the evaluation were satisfactory and adequate to meet your Company's
requirements,

The Board also expressed its satisfaction over the process of evaluation.
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VIGIL MECHANISM/WHISTLE BLOWERPOLICY

The Company has established a Vigil Mechanism as stated in the Whistle Blower Policy as envisaged under the
provisions of Section 177 (9) of the Act and the Rules thereunder and Regulation 22 of the LODR Regulations, so asto
provide a channel to the employee(s) and Directors to report to the management, concerns about unethical behaviour,
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the code of conduct or policy/ies of the Company, as adopted/framed from
lime to time. The Policy provides for protecting confidentiality of those reporting violation(s) and restricts any
discriminatory practices against them, for adequale safeguards against viclimisation of employee(s) and Direclors to
avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairperson of the Audit Committee in exceptional
cases.

The concerned matters related to all issues that could have grave impact on the operations and performance of the
business of your Company are to be reported to the Compliance Officer and/ or the Chairperson of the Audit
Committee.

During the financial year 2024-25, no employee has been denied access to the Compliance Officer/ the Chairperson
ofthe Audit Committee, who have been appointed as the Whistle Blower Officers of the Company.

The Whistle Blower policy Is available on the Company's website:www.adarshplant.com in Policy section by
accessing the web-link: https://adarshplant.com/ policy/

PREVENTION OF SEXUALHARASSMENT AT THE WORKPLACE
Your Company is committed to a safe, inclusive workplace where everyone feels respected and empowered.

Following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the financial year 2024-25.

No. of complaints not resolved as on 1" April, 2024 : NIl
No. of complaints received In financial year 2024-25  : NIl
No. of complaints resolved in financial year 2024-25 @ Nil
No. of complaints pending as on 31" March, 2025 = NIl
MATERNITY BENEFITACT, 2017

The Company confirms that it has followed the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961. All eligible women employees received the
required benefits, including paid leave, continued salary and service, and post-maternity support like nursing breaks
and flexible work options.

Number of employees as on the closure of financial year :

- Female - 02
« Male ' 37
« Transgender 00

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY

There have been no malerial changes and commilments, affecting the financial position of your Company which have
occurred during the period between the end of the financial year to which the financial statements relate and the date
of this Report.
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INTERNALCONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIRADEQUACY

The Company has strong integrated systems for internal financial control system that commensurate with the size and
scale of its operations and the same has been operating effectively. The Internal Auditor evaluates the efficacy and
adequacy of internal control system. Based on the report of internal audit process, the Board/ Management
undertakes corrective action in their respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit
observations and corrective actions thereon were presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Your Company has established effective internal control systems to ensure accurate, reliable and timely compilation
of financial statements, to safeguard assets of your Company and to detect and mitigate irregularities and frauds.

In accordance with the requirements of the Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, the Statutory Auditors have confirmed the
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial control systems over financial reporting.

REPORTING OF FRAUDS

There have been no frauds reported under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act, duning the financial year under
review, to the Audit Committee or the Board of Directors.

STATUTORYAUDITORS AND INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The tenure of 5 (five) years of Rajani Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 0121126W) who had been appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of your Company shall expire on commencemeant of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of
the Company.

M/s Mukund & Rohit, Chartered Accountants, Vadodara (FRN: 113375W) have been proposed to be appointed as the
Statutory Auditors of your Company in this 33" Annual General Meeting of the Company for a continuous period on 5
(Five) years from financial year 2025-26 to financial year 2029-30. The Auditors have confirmed that they are not
disqualified from continuing as Auditors of the Company.As required under Regulation 33(1)(d) of the LODR
Reguiations, the Auditors have also confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer Review Board of the
ICAl to hold the office as Auditors of the Company.

The Independent Auditors' Report given by M/s. Rajani Shah & Co, Statutory Auditors, on the Financial Statements of
your Company, for the year ended 31" March, 2025, forms part of the Annual Report. There is no qualification,
reservation or adverse remark or any disclaimer in their Report. The remarks/ comments referred fo in the Auditors'
Report for FY 2024-25 are self-explanatory and do not call for any clarifications or comments by the Board of Directors.

INTERNALAUDITORS

M/s Mukund Patel and Company, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 106658W) has conducted the internal audit of your
Company for the financial year 2024-25.

The Internal Auditor conduct their internal audit on quarterly basis and the Internal Audit Report is placed before the
Audit Committee and the Board of Directors in their respective Meetings on quarterly basis. The Audit Committee
ensures that suggestions as provided in the said Report are complied with. Also, there were no qualification,
reservation or adverse remark or any disclaimer in any of the Internal Audit Report.

Pursuant to provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, on the
recommendation of the Audit Commiltee, the Company has appointed M/s Mukund Patel and Company, Chartered
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Accountants (Firm Registration No. 106658W) as the Internal Auditor for the financial year 2025-26. The Company
has received the consent from them for their appointment.

SECRETARIALAUDITORAND SECRETARIALAUDIT REPORT

In accordance with the applicable provisions of the Section 204 of Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 24A of
the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee, the Board has appointed M/s. D, G. Bhimani and Associates, Practising Company Secretaries (C P No,
6628) as the Secretarial Auditors for a period of 5 years commencing from financial year 2025-26 to financial year
2029-30. The Company has recelved his consent for the said appointment.

The Report on Secrelarial Audit for the financial year 2024-25, in Form MR-3, is annexed hereto and forms part of this
Report. There is no qualification, reservation or adverse remark or any disclaimer in their Report.

COSTRECORDSANDAUDIT

The provisions of Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Cost Record and Audit) Rules,
2014 regarding to the maintenance of the costrecords and audit thereof are not applicable to your Company.

However, your Company is maintaining cost records to prepare financial statements.
COMPLIANCEWITH SECRETARIALSTANDARDS ON BOARD AND GENERAL MEETING

The Directors of your Company confirm that the applicable Secretarial Standards prescribed for the Board and
General Meetings by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and notified by the Central Government have been
complied with during the financial year under review. The Company has also voluntarily adopted olher applicable
Secretarial Standards issued the Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

PREVENTION OF INSIDER TRADING

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Fair Disclosures and
Conduct with a view to regulate trading in securities by the Directors and designated persons of the Company. The
Code requires pre-clearance for dealing in the Company's shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company's
shares by the Directors and the designated persons while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in
relation to the Company and during the period when the Trading Window is closed. The Board of Directors and all the
designated persons have complied with the Code.

GENERAL

+ During the year under review, there was no change in nature of business of the Company.

+ During the year under review, all the properties of the Company have been insured properly and the Company has
taken necessary general insurance.

« During the year under review, there were no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or
tribunals impacting the going concern status and your Company's operationsin future.

During the year under review, there were no application made or any proceeding pending under the Insolvency and
Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

« Duringthe year under review, there was no one time settlement with the Banks/ Financial institutions.
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ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your Directors and Management take this opportunity to thank your Company's customers, vendors, investors,
business associates, bankers and other stakeholders for their continued support. Your Directors also take this
opportunity to applaud the contributions made by all the employees to the operations of your Company for its
continued growth and success.

By the Order of the Board of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Sd/-
Mr. Naishadkumar Patel
Chairperson

Date: 267 July, 2025 (DIN: 00082749)




Annexure |: AOC 2

Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/ arrangements entered into by the Company with related

parties referred to in sub-section (1) of Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm's

length transactions under third proviso thereto

A. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm'’s length basis

During the year, the Company has not entered into any contracts/ arrangements with any of the related party,

which are not on arm's length basis.

B. Details of material contracts orarrangement or transactions atarm's length basis

The details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions entered during the year under review at arm's

length basis are provided hereunder:

Name(s) of
the related
party

Nature of
Relation-ship

Duration of
con-tract

Salient terms

Date(s) of
approval by the
Share-holders

Amount paid
as advances,
if any

1.  Purchase/ Sales of Goods and/ or Services (including sales returns and purchase return)

Mini
Sarvodyog
Sira

Mr. Naishad Patel -
Chairperson, Mr.
Atish Patel -
Managing Director
and Mrs. Jyotika
Patel - Non-
Executive Direclor,
are the partners of
Mini Sarvodyog
Sira.

12 months

Period of Transactions:

From the conclusion of
the 32"" AGM till
commencement of 33rd
ofthe Company.

The maximum value of
purchase/ sales of
goods/ and/ or services
(net of purchase return/
sales return, if any) is
within the limits as
permissible and
approved by the Audit
Committee/ Board/
shareholders of the
Company.

14"
September,
2024

Nil
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Name(s) of Nature of Duration of Salient terms Date(s) of Amount paid
the related Relation-ship con-tract approval by the| as advances,
party Share-holders if any

2. LeaseofLand & Building and Plant & Machinery
NAS Mr. Naishad Patel —| 35 months |Period of Agreement:| 14" Nl
Packaging  |Chairpersonand Mr, 01.04.2024 to| September,
it Atish Patel - 29,02.2027 2024
("NAS’) wangging: Do, The rents charges were
are the Directors of : :
NAS: within the limits gs
permissible and
Mrs. Jyotika Patel - approved by the Audit
Non-Executive Committee/ Board/
Director of the shareholders of the
Company is spouse Company.
of Mr. Naishad Patel
and mother of Mr.
Atish Patel.
By the Order of the Board of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Date: 26" July, 2025

Sd/-
Mr. Naishadkumar Palel

Chairperson
(DIN: 00082749)




Annexure lI: Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption
And Foreign Exchange Earnings And Outgo

INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 134(3)(m) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 8(3) OF THE
COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF THE BOARD REPORT FOR THE YEAR
ENDED 31" MARCH, 2025

(A}  Conservation of Energy

The Company is continuously making efforts to improve Energy Management by way of monitoring energy
related parameters on a regular basis. The Company is committed to transform energy conservation into a
strategic business goal fully along with the technological sustainable development of Energy Management
Systems, Itis making best endeavours to reduce energy consumption in all its operations and activities.

Energy conservation continues to receive priority attention at all levels. All efforts are made fo conserve and
optimize use of energy with continuous monitoring, improvement in maintenance and distribution systems
and through improved operation technigues.

To achieve the above objectives the following steps are being undertaken by the Company:

|, Continuously monitoring the energy parameters such as maximum demand, power factor, load factor,
TOD tariff utilization on regular basis.

Il.  Continuously replacing the inefficient equipment with latest energy efficient technology and upgradation
of equipment continually.

lIl. Increasing the awareness of energy saving within the organization to avoid wastage of energy.
IV. Achieving the power factor closer to unity in the Plant by effective reactive energy management.
V. Toreduce the Green House Emission by improving energy efficiency at the Plant.

(B)  Technology Absorption, Adaption and Innovation

The Company continues to lay emphasis on development and innovation of in-house technology and
technical skill to meet customer requirements, Efforts are also continuing for improving productivity and
quality of products and continue to keep pace with the advances in technological innovations and up-
gradation.

(C)  Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo

The Foreign Exchange earned in terms of actual inflows during the year and the Foreign Exchange outgo
during the year in terms of aclual are as under:

[Rs. in lakhs)
Total foreign exchange outgo 0.66

2 | Total foreign exchange earned -

By the Order of the Board of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Sd/-
Mr, Naishadkumar Patel

Chairperson
Date: 26" July, 2025 (DIN: 00082749)
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Annexure lll: peTaiLs OF THE TOP 10 EMPLOYEES (APART FROM KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) OF THE COMPANY IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN

As required under with Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014
1. Total Permanent Employees on the roll of the Company as on 31.03.2025: 39

2. Details of top 10 employees in terms of salary

Sr.
No.

Names of Rajeev Singh | Anil Sonar Kamlesh Dhwani Shah | Himanshu Bhoi
Employees Yadav

VP (Sales & | VP (Sales & Production Company Chief  Financial
Marketing) Marketing-Barrel) | Incharge Secretary Officer

Designation

Monthly
Remuneration | 55000 75000 60000 35000 32000
(Rs.)

Nature of
Employment
Contractual or
otherwise

Otherwise

. BBA. B.COM/
E‘:;‘*“:;'::: B.COM, MARKETING BA. A.C.S., B.COM | B.COM
pe M.COM MANAGEMENT

Date of
Commencement 01-01-2024 | 10-10-2023 23-07-2020 | 01-04-2024 01-12-2024
of employment

Age (Yrs.) &1 61 41 39 45
Last
employment
before joining
the Company

Greenway SPI Industries Medium HLE Glascoat | Globle Info Pack
Grameen Pvt Ltd. Packaging Limited Pvt Ltd
Infra Pvt Ltd. Pvt Ltd.

% of shares
held in the - - - - -
Company

Relationship
with any
Director or None
manager of the
Company
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Annexure lll: petaiLs oF THE TOP 10 EMPLOYEES (APART FROM KEY
MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) OF THE COMPANY IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN

Sr.
No.

10.

Names of
Employees

Ritesh D.
Patel

Mehul B. Patel

Hitesh
Parmar

Vraj Patel

Ashwin

Designation

Purchase
Manager

Cashier

Quality
Manager

Executive
Assistant

Transport
Manager

Monthly
Remuneration
(Rs.)

24450

18250

23000

15500

17,000

Nature of
Employment
Contractual or
otherwise

Otherwise

Qualifications
& Experience

B.COM

B.COM

12" pass

B.COM

12 pass

Date of
Commencement
of employment

01-06-2006

01-07-2007

25-01-2021

15-02-2022

30-11-2021

Age (Yrs.)

41

44

40

26

41

Last
employment
before joining
the Company

% of shares
held in the
Company

Relationship
with any
Director or
manager of the
Company

None

Date: 26" July, 2025
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By the Order of the Board of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Sdi-
Mr. Naishadkumar Patel

Chairperson
(DIN: 00082749)




Annexure IV: SALIENT FEATURES OF THE NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY

2. OBJECTIVEOF THEPOLICY
The Policy is framed with the following objectives:

2.1 Thatthe Company's Board shall comprise of Directors possessing diverse background and experience in
business, government, academics, technology and in areas that are relevant for the Company's
operations, having the highest personal and professional ethics, integrity and values with an ability to
balance the legitimate interests and concemns of all the Company's stakeholders in arriving at decisions,
rather than advancing the interests of a parlicular constiluency.

2.2 Thatthe level and composition of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate
directors of the quality required to run the Company successiully.

2.3 That the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks.

24  That the remuneration to Directors and Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) involves a balance between
fixed and incentive pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working
ofthe Company and its goals.

2.5 Tolaydown criteria and terms and conditions regarding identifying persons who are qualified to become
Directors (Executive and Non-executive) and persons who may be appointed in Senior Management,
Key Managerial positions and to determine their remuneration.

2.6 Todetermine remuneration based on the Company's size and financial position and trends and practices
on remuneration prevailing in peer companies, inthe industry.

2.7 To carry out evaluation of the performance of Directors, as well as Key Managerial and Senior
Management Personnel and to provide for reward(s) linked directly to their effort, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to the Company's operations.

2.8 To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented managerial
persons and create competitive advantage.

2.9 To lay down criteria for appointment, removal of directors, Key Managerial Personnel and Senior
Management Personnel and evaluation of their performance.

4. APPLICABILITY

This Policy is applicable to:

a. Directors viz. Executive, Non-Executive and Independent

b. Key Managerial Personnel

c. Senior Managemenl Personne|

d. Other Employees of the Company as may be decided by the Board

5. APPOINTMENT CRITERIAAND QUALIFICATION

51 The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and experience of the
person for appointment as the Director and who are nol disqualified to be the Directors in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made thereunder, and recommend to the
Board his/ her appointment. In this regard, the Committee may rely on the Company's management, or
external search firm(s), or a mix of both, as the Committee deems fit from time to time.

' Criteria for Appointment of Directors:

Aperson, to be appointed as Director, should possess impeccable reputation for integrity, deep expertise
and insights in sectors/areas relevant to the Company, ability to contribute to the Company's growth and
complementary skills in relation to the other Board members.
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Annexure IV: SALIENT FEATURES OF THE NOMINATION AND
REMUNERATION POLICY OF THE COMPANY

Aperson to be appointed as a Director shall not possess any disqualifications as stipulated in Section 164
ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

. Manner of Appointment/ Re-appointment of Directors:

The Committee shall appoint/ re-appoint the Director on the Board in accordance with the provisions of
Sections 152 lo 169 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made
there under.

7. TERM/TENURE

The Term of the Direclors including Managing/ Whole time Director/ Independent Director shall be governed as
per the provisions of the Act and Rules made thereunder read with Schedule IV to the Act and the LODR
Regulations, as amended from time ta time. However, the term of the KMP (other than the Managing/ Whole
time Director) and Senior Management shall be governed by the prevailing HR policies of the Company.

8. FAMILIARISATION OF THE DIRECTORS:

All the Directors of the Company shall be appropriately familiarised with the Company, their roles, rights,
responsibilities in the Company, nature of the industry in which the Company operates, business model of the
Company, elc.

9. EVALUATION

9.1 The Commitlee shall identify evaluation criteria which will evaluate Directors based on knowledge to
perform the role, time and level of participation, performance of duties, level of oversight, professional
conduct and independence. The appointment/re-appointment/ continuation of Directors on the Board
shall be subjectto the outcome of the yearly evaluation process.

12. REMUNERATION TO THE DIRECTORS:

This Policy delineating the structure of Remuneration package including the basic salary, allowances, bonus
and perquisites to the Directors and the Board shall be in accordance with the applicable provisions of the
CompaniesAct, 2013 and the LODR Regulations as amended from time to time.

While designing remuneration structure for managing/ executive/ non-executive directors, the Company shall
have regards to the following

- The financial and operating performance of the Company during preceding financial years.
- The relationship between remuneration and performance.

- The principle for proportionality of remuneration within the Company, ideally by rating methodology which
compares the remuneration of directors to lat of the other directors on the Board who receive
remuneration and employees or executives of the Company.

- Whether the remuneration policy for directors differs from thal of the other employees and if so, an
explanation for the difference.

- The securities held by the director, including options and details of share pledged as at the end of the
preceding financial year.

17. DISSEMINATION

The details of the Policy and the evaluation criteria as applicable shall be published on the Company’s website
and accordingly disclosed in the Annual Report as part of Board's report therein.

18. AMENDMENT

The Nomination & Remuneration Committee reserves its right to amend or modify this Policy in whole or in part,
subject to approval by the Board, at any time consequent upon any amendment to applicable laws of land.

Aforesaid Policy is available on the Company's website: https://www.adarshplant.com/policy
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Annexure V: Corporate Governance Report

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
Forming part of the Board Report

COMPANY PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The fundamental philosophy of Corporate Governance in the Company is to achieve business excellence and
dedicate itself for meeting its obligations to the Shareholders. The Company believes that good Corporate
Governance is a continuous process and sirives to improve the same to meet Shareholders' expectations. Your
Company has adopted Code of Conduct for employees, management and for Directors as well. Your Company
believes that the good governance process has a positive impact on the Company's reputation, employees,
customers and stakeholders at large.

The Report on Corporate Governance, as per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 ('LODR Regulations')is given as under :

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Board of Directors have ultimate responsibility for the management, general affairs, direction, performance and
long-term success of business as a whole. The Management of the Company is headed by the Chairperson and the
Managing Director and has business/ functional heads, which look after the management of the day-to-day affairs of
the Company.

Composition and Board Diversity

The Board of Directors ('the Board') comprises of appropriate mix of Executive and Non-Executive Directors as
required under the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Acl’) and the LODR Regulations lo maintain the independence of the
Board and alsa to maintain an optimal mix of professionalism, knowledge and experience to enable it to discharge its.
related responsibilities and provide effective leadership to the business.

As on 31" March, 2025, the Board consists of Six Directors comprising of 5 Non-Executive Directors, of which three
Directors are Independent Directors and two are Non-Executive Directors including one Woman Director. The
Executive Directors include one Managing Director. In terms of Regulation 17 of the LODR Regulations, the Non-
Executive Independent Directors constitute 50% of the Board as at 31 March, 2025.

The number of Directorships, Committee Membership(s)/ Chairpersonship(s) of all Directors is within respective limits
prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 ("Act") and the LODR Regulations.

Detailed information on the Board of Directors and their directorships held in other companies and other
details is as under:

Name of Directors Mr. Mr. Atish Patel Mrs. Jyotikaben N.
Naishadkumar Patel Patel
Category of Directorship NEC (P} MD (P) ** NED (P) **
Inter-se relation with Spouse of Son of Spouse of
other Directors Mrs. Jyolika Patel, Naishadkumar Patel M, Naishadﬁcumar Patel,
Father of Atish Patel. | and Mrs. Jyotika Patel gﬂﬂf of Atish
a
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No. of Public & Private
Companies# in which
Directorships held##

Names of Listed Companies
(excluding your Company) in
which Directorships held

Names of other Listed
Companies

Calegory of Directorships

No. of Committees® in which
appointed as a Member (M)/
Chairperson (C)

1 (M)

1(M)

Committee Details+ in other
Public Limited Companies,
listed or not, in which Member
(M) or aChairperson (C)

Name of Directors

Mr. Arvind V. Shah
(01.04.2024 to
14.09.2024)

Mr.
Bipinkumar
S. Thakkar

Mr. Vipul H.
Raval

Mr. C. S. Trivedi
(w.e.f.14.09.2024)

Category of Directorship

NED (1) *

NED (1) **

NED (1) **

NED (I) *

Inter-se relation with other
Directors

None

None

None

None

No. of Public & Private
Companies# in which
Directorships held##

Names of Listed Companies
(excluding your Company) in
which Directorships held

Names of other Listed
Companies

Category of Directorships

No. of Committees® in which
appointed as a Member (M)/
Chairperson (C)

2(C)

2 (M)

2 (M)

2 (C)

Committee Details+ in other
Public Limited Companies,
listed or not, in which Member
(M) ora Chairperson (C)
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“*NEC (P) — Non-Executive Chairperson (Promoter), MD (P) - Managing Director (Promoter), NED (P) - Non-
Executive Director (Promoter), NED (1} - Non-Executive Director (Independent).

‘none of the Directors hold Directorships in any other Listed companies except that of your Company.

“no. of companies in which Directorships is held is considered after including your Company, and excluding
companies incorporated under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and foreign companies.,

* includes Audit and Stakeholders Relalionship Commitlees of the Company.
‘includes Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Committees of other public companies.

All the Directors have made necessary disclosures regarding their Directorships as required under Section 184 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Committee positions held by them in other companies as stipulated under Regulation
26 of the LODR Regulations. The number of Directorship(s), Committee Membership(s)/ Chairpersonship(s) of all the
Directors is within respective limits prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and the LODR Regulations as
amended from time to time.

As per Regulation 17A of the LODR Regulations, Independent Directors of the Company do not serve as Independent
Director in more than seven listed companies. Further, the Executive Director of the Company do not serve as an
Independent Directar in any listed entity.

Independent Directors' Confirmation by the Board

The Independent Direclors have provided the declarations on criteria of independence as prescribed in Section
149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16 (1) (b) and Regulation 25 (8) of the LODR Regulations as on 31" March, 2025.
They have further confirmed that they are not aware of any circumstances or situation which exists or may be
reasonably anlicipated that could impair or impacl their ability to discharge their duties. A Statement by the Mapaging
Director regarding the said affirmation by the Independent Directors is annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.

Information related to the Board Meetings with regards to their dates and attendance of each of the Directors
thereat and in last Annual General Meeting held on 14" September, 2024 :

The Board meets at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company/ business policy and strategy apart from
other business. In case of a special and urgent business need, the Board's approval is taken by passing resolutions by
circulation, as permitted by law, which are noted and confirmed in the subsequent Board Meeti ng.

The notice of Board/ Committee Meetings is given well in advance, at least a week prior than the Board/ Committee
Meetings, to all the Directors. The Agenda of the Board/ Commitiee Meelings is set by the Company Secretary in
consultation with the Chairperson, the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer the Company. as per the
guidelines in the LODR Regulations to the extent itis relevant and applicable. The Company provides the information
as set out in Regulation 17 read with Part A of Schedule |l of the LODR Regulations to the Board and the Board
Committees to the extent itis applicable and relevant.

The Unpublished Price Sensitive Information is placed in the Meetings itself with the general consent of the Directors
obtained in the Board Meeting held at the beginning of the financial year. In special and exceptional circumstances,
additional item(s) on the agenda is/are taken up with due permission of all the present Board/ Committee Members
including majority of the Independent Directors. The Board takes decision based on detailed discussions and
deliberations, with full independence to all the Board/ Committee Members to raise any issue/matter for discussion.,
The Board also requests the Statutory/ Internal/ Secretarial auditors and others as invitees fo join the Meeting, as
appropriate.

The Board of Directors met 5 (five) times during the year on the fullﬂwing_ dates in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and the LODR Regulations: 8" May, 2024, 12" June, 2024, 17"
July, 2024, 14 "November, 2024 and 10" February, 2025.
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The maximum interval between any two consecutive Meetings was less than 120 days, as slipulated under Section
173(1) of the Act, and Regulation 17(2) of the LODR Regulalions and the Secrelarial Standards issued by Insfitute of
Company Secretaries of India.

The details of attendance of each Director at the Board Meetings held during the year and the last Annual General

Meeting (AGM) are given below:
(Rs. in Lakhs)
Names of Directors No. of Board Meetings Sitting Fees paid Whether Attended Last
attended (Rs. in lakhs) AGM
Mr. Naishad Patel 5 - Yes
Mr. Atish Patel 5 - Yes
Mrs. Jyotikaben N. Patel 5 0.25 Yes
Mr. Arvind V. Shah
(till 14.09.2024) $ Didg 143
Mr. Bipin S. Thakkar 5 0.25 Yes
Mr. Vipul H. Raval 5 0.25 Yes
: |

The Company Secretary and the Secretarial/ Internal/ Statutory Auditors attend the Board Meetings and advise the
Board on compliances with applicable laws and govemance.

The draft Minutes of the proceedings of the Meetings of the Board/Committee(s) and the signed Minutes are circulated
to all the Members of the Board/ Committee(s) for their perusal within the stipulated time prescribed by Secretarial
Standard on Meeting of the Board of Directors.

Equity Shareholding of the Non-Executive Directors in the Company as on 31" March 2025is as under:

Name of the Non-Executive/ Number of Name of the Non-Executive/ Number of
Independent Director shares held independent Director shares held
Mr. Naishad Patel 4025000 Mr. Bipinkumar S. Thakkar Nil
Mrs. Jyotikaben N. Patel Nil Mr. Vipul H. Raval 5100
Mr. C. S. Trivedi Nil . -

Details of Familiarisation Programmes imparted to Independent Directors

Aformal letter of appointment is issued to the Independent Director al the time of his/ her appointment, which inter alia
explains the role, function, duties and responsibilities expected from him/ her as a Director of the Company. The
Independent Director is also explained in detail the compliances required from him/ her under the Companies Act,
2013, the LODR Regulations and other various statutes as a Director and Independent Director and an affirmation is
also obtained.

The Independent Director is also informed about the business model, nature of industry, operations and working of the
Company as awhole.

Further, on an ongoing basis as a part of Agenda of Board/ Commitiee Meetings, information is regularly provided o
the Independent Directors on various matters covering the Company's businesses and operations, industry and
regulatory updates, strategy, finance, risk management framework, and significant changes that may affect the
Company, so that they can take informed decision and contribute significantly in the Committee and the Board
Meetings.
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The details are available on our website: www.adarshplant.com in Policy section by accessing the web-link
hitps://adarshplant.com/ policy/

Key Skills, Competency and Expertise of the Board

The Board of the Company comprises of qualified Members who bring in required skills, competency and expertise
that allow them to make effective contribution to the Board and its Committees.

The following core skills/ expertise/ competencies have been identified for the effective functioning of the Company
and are currently available within the Board Members :

Leadership/ Operational Experience

+ Administration and Management

« Strategic Planning

« Industry Experience

+ Research & Development and Innovation
Financial, Regulatory/ Legal
Risk Management

« Corporate Govermnance

« Sales and Marketing

While all the Board Members possess the skills identified, their area of core expertise is given below:

Name of Directors Area of Expertise Name of Directors Area of Expertise
Mr, Naishad N. Patel |« Leadership/ Operational | Mr, Arvind V. Shah Leadership/ Operational
Experience (01.04.241014.09.24) |+ Experience

« Strategic Planning

Corporate Governance
« |nduslry Experience

Financial, Regulatory/ Legal

- - L - L]

« Research & Development Risk Management
and Innovation
Mr. Alish Palel + Leadership/ Operational|Mr.BipinS.Thakkar |+ Leadership/ Operational
Experience Experience
« Administraltion and « Financial, Regulatory/
Managemenl + Legal
. Slfﬂ[ﬂgiﬂ Planning « RiskManagement
» Industry Experience » Corporate Governance
+ Research & Development
and Innovation
» Corporate Governance
+ Salesand Marketing
« Risk Management
Mrs. Jyotikaben N. |« Administration and|Mr VipulH. Raval + Industry Experience
Patel Management « Research & Development and
+ Strategic Planning Innovation
« Salesand Marketing
Mr. C. S. Trivedi + Industry Experience
(w.e.f. 14.09.24) « Financial, Regulatory/ Legal
+ Risk Management
« Corporate Governance

The Board is satisfied that the current composition reflects an appropriate mix of knowledge, skills, experience,
diversity and independence required for it to function effectively.
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INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

All the Independent Directors on the Board are highly experienced, competent and renowned persons In their
respeclive fields of expertise. They aclively participate in the Board and Committee Mesetings which is a greal value
addition in the decision-making process.

Meeting of the Independent Directors
In accordance with Schedule |V of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the LODR Regulations, a

separate Meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 8" May, 2024, without the attendance of Non-Independent
Directors and Members of the Management, to review :

« the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;
the performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of the Executive Direclor and
the Non-Executive Direclor;

« the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and the Board that is
necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.

« the compliance of the various Codes as framed by the Company.

Mr. Arvind V. Shah, the erstwhile Independent Director was the Chairperson of the Meeling of Independent Directors.

Attendance of Independent Directors in Independent Directors Meeting held on 8" May, 2024:

Independent Directors No. of Meetings held Meetings attended
Mr. Arvind V. Shah 1 1
Mr. Bipin S. Thakkar 1 1
Mr. Vipul H. Raval 1 ]
COMMITTEES OF THEBOARD

The Board Committees play a crucial role in the governance slructure of the Company and have been constituted to
deal with specific areas/ activities as mandated by applicable regulation; which concern the Company and need a
closer review. The Board Committees are set up under the formal approval of the Board to carry out clearly defined
roles which are considered to be performed by Members of the Board, as a part of good governance practice. The
minutes of the Meeting of all Commitiees are placed before the Board for review. The Board Committees also request
special invitees to join the Meeting, as they may deem appropriate.

Details of the Committees constituted by the Board, with regards to the number of Meetings held and presence of the
Committee Members therein, are provided hereinbelow

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Composition

The Audit Commitlee of the Company comprises of three Independent Directors. Mr. Arvind Shah, the erstwhile
Independent Director of the Company was the Chairperson of the Committee till his term concluded w.e f. 14.09.2024.
Mr. C. 8. Trivedi, Independent Director has been appointed as the Chairperson and Mr. Naishad Patel, Non-Executive
Director has been inducted as the Member in the Audit Commitiee, in the Board Meeting held on 14.11.2024.

Both the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee erstwhile and present, are qualified Chartered Accountants and have
relevant accounting and financial management expertise and experience. The Committee acls as a link between the
Management, external and internal auditors and the Board of Directors of the Company.

The composition, powers, role and terms of reference of the Committee are in accordance with the requirements
mandated under Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder and Regulation 18
and 21 read with Part C of Schedule Il of the LODR Regulations. All the Members of the Audit Committee are
financially literate and bring in expertise in the fields of Finance, Taxation, Economics, Risk and International Finance.

\ =




Annexure V: Corporate Governance Report

Meeting and Attendance

The Audit Commitlee meets atleast once in a quarter. The Audit Committee mel 5 (five ) times during the financial year
in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made there under and the LODR
Regulations. The maximum gap between two Meetings was not more than 120 days. The Committee met on 8" May,
2024,12" June, 2024, 17" July, 2024, 14"November, 2024 and 10" February, 2025. The requisite guorum was present
at all the Meetings. The Chairperson of the Audit Committee was present at the 32" Annual General Meeting of the
Company held on 14" September, 2024 lo answer the Shareholder queries.

The Meetings of Audit Committee are also attended by the Chief Financial Officer, the Statutory Auditors, the Internal
Auditor and the Secretarial Auditor as invitees, as and when invited by the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary
acts as the Secretary o the Commiltee, The minutes of each Audit Committee Meeling are placed in the next Meeling
of the Board.

The Table below provides the attendance of the Audit Committee Members:

Name of Member Category Designation Attendance
Mr. Arvind Shah Independent Director Chairperson 3
Mr. Bipin S. Thakkar Independent Director Member 5
Mr. Vipul H. Raval Independent Director Member 5
Mr. C. S. Trivedi Independent Director Chairperson 1
Mr. Naishad Patel Non-Executive Director | Member 1
All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee during the financial year under review were accepted by the

Board.

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE

Composition

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee compnses of three Independent Directors and one Managing Director, in
accordance with the provisions of Section 178(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Regulation 20 of the LODR
Regulations.

Stakeholders' Relationship Committee is entrusted with responsibilities to resolve grievances of the stakeholders.
The Committee also oversees the performance of the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and recommends
measures for overall improvement of the quality of investor services as and when need arises. Mr. Arvind Shah, the
erstwhile Independent Director of the Company was the Chairperson of the Committee till his term concluded w.e.f.
14.09.2024. Mr. C, S. Trivedi, the Independent Director of the Company, has been appointed as the Chairperson of the
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, in the Board Meeting held on 14.11.2024,

Meetings and Attendance

During the financial year, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee has met 2 (two) times on 8" May, 2024 and, 14"
November, 2024 and the atiendance of the Members at the Meetings was as follows:

Name of Member Category Designation Attendance
Mr. Arvind Shah Independent Director Chairperson 1
Mr. Bipin S. Thakkar Independent Director Member 2
Mr. Vipul H. Raval Independent Director Member 2
Mr. Atish Patel Managing Director Member 2
Mr. C. S. Trivedi Independent Director Chairperson -
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The signed Minutes of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meetings are circulated to the Board and noted by
the Board of Directors at the Board Meetings.

Name and Designation of the Compliance Officer

During the year under review, M/s MUFG Intime India Private Limited, the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the
Company attends to day-to-day requests and the grievances of the shareholders under due supervision of Ms.
Dhwani Shah, the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer. The Stakeholders Relationship Committee regularly
oversees the functions of the Compliance Officer and systems and manner of investor grievance handling and
resolving the same expeditiously.

As on 31" March, 2025, the Company had 5353 Members. The status of the complaints received by the Company
during the year under review is as under:

Ason 1" April, 2024:; Nil

Received during the year: Nil
Resolved during the year: Nil
Outstanding as on 31" March, 2025: Nil

During financial year 2024-25, the Company has salisfactorily responded and resolved the various requests of the
shareholders. Continuous efforls are made to ensure that grievances are more expeditiously redressed 1o the
complete satisfaction of the investors,

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Composition

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprises of three Independent Directors. The composition, powers,
rale and terms of reference of the Committee are in accordance with the requirements mandated under Section 178 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and read with Clause 19 of Part D of Schedule |l of the LODR Regulations. Apart from the
above, the Committee also carries out such functions/ responsibilities entrusted on it by the Board of Directors from
time to time. The Committee ensures that the Board of the Company has an optimum mix of the eligible Directors-
Executive/ Non-Executive and Independent Directors, having expertise/ experience in their relevant field in
accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and the LODR Regulations, and can give valuable advice with neutral
attribute. The Committee also ensures that the candidate identified for appointment as a Director is not disqualified for
appointment under Section 164 of the CompaniesAct, 2013,

Mr. Arvind Shah, the erstwhile Independent Director of the Company was the Chairperson of the Commiltee lill his
lerm concluded w.e.f. 14.09.2024.Mr. Vipul Raval, the Independent Director, has been appoinled as the Chairperson
of the Committee; while C. S. Trivedi, the Independent Director has been appointed as the Member of the Committee
in the Board Meeting heldon 14.11.2024.

Meeting and Attendance

During the financial year, the Nomination and Remuneration Committee has met for 3 (three) times on 8" May, 2024
17" July, 2024 and 14" November, 2024. The requisite quorum was present at the Meeting. Mr. Arvind Shah, the
erstwhile Chairperson of the Committee was present at the 32" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 14"
September, 2024 to answer the shareholders’ queries.
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The table below provides the attendance of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee Members:

Name of Member Category Designation Attendance
Mr, Arvind Shah Independent Director Chairperson 2
Mr. Bipin S. Thakkar Independent Director Member 3
Mr. Vipul H. Raval Independent Director Member 3
Mr. Vipul H. Raval Independent Director Chairperson .
Mr. C. S. Trivedi Independent Director Member -

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Directors:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rules made thereunder and the LODR

Regulations, performance evaluation of Directors, Committees and Board as a whole was carried oul.

A structured questionnaire was prepared after circulating the draft forms, covering various aspects of the Board's
functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and
performance of specific duties, obligations and governance. Individual Directors including the Chairperson of the
Board were also evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and conltribution, independence of
judgement.

The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board basis participation of
Independent Directors in the Meeting, raising of concerns to the Board, safeguarding the confidential information,
rendering of independent decisions, unblased opinions and resolution of issues in the Meetings, timely inputs on the
minutes, and initiatives in terms of planning and new |deas. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the
evaluation process.

The details of the manner of performance evaluation carried out in the financial year 2024-25 and outcome thereof
have been provided in the Board Repor.

Nomination and Remuneration Policy

The Company believes that human resource is the key for the continuous growth and development of the Company.
The Board, on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, has approved Nomination and
Remuneration Policy for Directors, KMP and Senior Management employees.

The Policy on Remuneration of the Directors of the Company is in consonance with the existing industry practice.
i) Remuneration to Non-Executive Directors (including the Independent Directors)

The details relating to the remuneration of Directors are as under:

The Non-Executive Directors do not receive any remuneration except sitting fees of Rs. 5,000 per Board Meeting of
the Company attended by them, which is within the limits specified by the Companies Act, 2013. The details of the
sitting fees paid to the Non-Executive Directors for attending the Board Meetings have been disclosed in this
Report. Except as stated above and elsewhere in this Report, the Non-Executive Directors do not have any other
pecuniary relationship with the Company. The Company has uploaded the Policy for Nomination and
Remuneration of Directors of the Company: www.adarshplant.com in Policy section by accessing the web-link:
https://adarshplant.com/ policy/
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Name of Director Remuneration Sitting Fees Total

Mr. Naishadkumar Patel* - = -

Mrs. Jyotikaben N. Patel - 0.25 0.25

Mr. Arvind Shah - 0.15 0.15

Mr. Bipinkumar S. Thakkar - 0.25 0.25

Mr. Vipul H. Raval - 0.25 0.25

Mr. C. S. Trivedi - 0.10 0.10
*Mr. Naishadkumar N. Patel has waived his rights for the receipt of the sitting fees for attending the Board and
Committee Meelings.

ii) Remuneration to Executive Directors

The appointment and remuneration of the Managing Director is governed by the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee, resolutions passed by the Board of Directors and Shareholders of the Company. Payment of
remuneration to the Managing Director is governed by the respective Agreements executed between him and the
Company.

Considering the financial performance of the Company, the Company doesn't pay any remuneration to the
Managing Director,

GOVERNANCE CODES
Code of Conduct

The Board has laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board Members of the Company. The Code requires Directors
and Employees lo act honeslly, fairly, ethically, and with integrity, conduct themselves in professional, courleous and
respectful manner.

All the Board Members and the Senior Management Personnel have affirmed their compliance with the Code during
the financial year 2024-25. The Managing Director of the Company has given Declaration to the Company regarding
the affirmation, which is annexed hereto and forms part of this Annual Report.

Conflict of Interests

Each Director and KMP informs the Company on an annual basis about the Board and the Commitlee positions he/
she occupies in other companies including Chairpersonships and notifies changes during the year, if any. The
Members of Board restrict themselves from any discussions and voting in transactions in which they have concemn or
interesl.

Insider Trading Code and Code of Fair Disclosure and Conduct

The Company has also adopted the Code for Prevention of Insider Trading and the Code for Fair Disclosures and
Conduct in accordance with the requirements of the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 as
amended from time to time (“the PIT Regulations™). The Code is applicable to Promoters, Member of Promoter's
Group, all Directors and such Designated Persons who are expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive
information relating to the Company.

The Company Secrefary and in his/ her absence, the Managing Director is the Compliance Officer for monitoring
adherence lo the said PIT Regulations. The Company has put in place adequate and effective system of internal
controls to ensure compliance with the requirements of the PIT Regulations and has established and maintains a
structured digital database by the Company, which contains the names and other particulars as prescrnbed of the
persons covered under the Codes drawn up pursuant to the PIT Regulations, is under process.

All the aforesaid Codes adopted by the Company are available on the Company’s website: www.adarshplant.com in
Policy section by accessing the web-link: hitps://adarshplant.com/ policy/
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GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

(a)

Details of location and time of the Annual General Meetings (AGM) and Extra-ordinary General Meeting

(EGM) of the Company held in the last 3 (Three) financial years are given below:

Financial
Year- Type
of General

Meeting

Date

Time

Location

Details of Special Resolutions
Passed which were approved by
the Members with requisite

majority

2023-24
AGM

14
September,
2024

2022-23 AGM

16"
September,

2023-24
EGM

014t
2023

2023
April,

Registered Office at
H-106,
GIDC Estate, Vitthal
Udyog-nagar — 388
121

a. Cantinuation of Mr.

Naishadkumar N. Patel (DIN:
00082749) as the Non -
Executive Director of the
Company

b.  Appointment of Mr.

Chandrashekhar S. Trivedi
(DIN: 10710050) as the
Independent Director of the
Company

¢. Amendment of Memorandum

of Association of the Company
in accordance with the
Companies Act, 2013

d.  Adoption of new set of

Association of the Company in
accordance with the
Companies Act, 2013

e. Re-appointment of Mr. Alish

N. Patel (DIN: 00084015) as
the Managing Director of the
Company

Approval of Material Related
Party Transactions of the
Company.

None

None

2021-22
AGM

17
September,
2022

Virtual Meeting held
through Audio-Visual
means-
Deemed
Registered Office at
H-108,

GIDC Estate, Vitthal
Udyognagar — 388
121

None
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(b) Postal Ballot
For matters which are urgent and require shareholders' approval in the period between the AGMs, the Company
seeks the approval of shareholders through postal ballot. In compliance wilh Sections 108 and 110 and other
applicable provisions of the Companies Acl, 2013 read with the related Rules, the Company also provides
electronic voling (e-voling) facility to all its Members.
During the year, the Company did not pass any special resolution through postal ballot.

DISCLOSURES

A. Related Party Transactions:

The Company executes the related party transactions considering business exigencies. All transactions with the
related parties are put before the Board for their approval, after getiing in-principal approval of the Audit Commitiee
of the Company, as and when required. The prior approvals of the Audit Committee/ the Board of Directors/
Shareholders, whenever required, have also been oblained by the Company before entering into any materially
significant related party transactions.

Alltransactions entered into with the Related Parties as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 23
of the LODR Regulations during the financial year were on arm's length basis with an intention to further the
Company's Interests and are in compliance with the requirements of the provisions of Section 188 of the Act. As
required under Regulation 23(1) of the LODR Regulations, the Company has formulated a Related Party Policy,
which js available on the Company's website: www.adarshplant.com in Policy section by accessing the web-link:
https://adarshplantprotect.comy/ policy/

In addition, pursuant to Regulation 23(9) of the LODR Regulations, along with the date of publication of its
standalone results, the Company has also submitted disclosures of related party transactions on half-yearly basis,
in the format specified in the relevant accounting standards for annual resulls and also published it on the website
ofthe Company : www.adarshplant.com by accessing the web-link: hitps://adarshplaniprotecl.com/ shareholders/

B. Details of Non-Compliance, Penalties, Strictures Imposed by the Stock Exchange(s) or SEBI or any Statutory
thority on any Matter Rel to Capital Markets since Listing.

The Company has complied with all requirements specified under the LODR Regulations as well as other
regulations and guidelines of SEEI.

During the year under review, your Company has duly complied with Reg. 17(1A) at the time of appointment or
continuation of Non-Executive Director who has attained the age of seventy-five years and the same was intimated
to the BSE Limited, However, due to inadvertent technical error in the portal regarding the said intimation, the BSE
Limited has treated it as non-compliance and has levied fine of Rs. 73,160 for non-compliance under Hegulatmn
17(1A) of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. In this regard, the Cnrnpany has filed Waiver Application, with
supporting documentls regarding compliance of the said Regulation 17 (1A), with the BSE Limited and the same is
pending.

Further, during the year under review, your Company has also provided reasonable and clarifications to the BSE
Limited for non-appointment of Compliance Officer under Regulation 6(1) of SEEI (LODR) Regulations, 2015in the
year 2023-24, for which an amount of Rs. 107380 has been levied as fine by the BSE Limiled. The Company has
filed Waiver Applii:atinn with the BSE Limited, with supporting documents, and the same is pending.

C. Vigil Mechanism and Whistle Blower Policy

The Company has formulated a Whistle Blower Policy, which has Vigil Mechanism. The details of establishment of
the said Policy and the Vigil Mechanism are available on the Company's websile: www.adarshplant.com by
accessing the web-link; https.//adarshplantprotect.com/ policy/

D. Details of compliance of mandatory requirements and adoption of non-mandatory requirements of applicable
ulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Reguiremen egulations, 2015

The Company has complied with all mandatory requirements stipulated in Regulation 34 of the LODR Regulations.
The Company has obtained a Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding compliance of
conditions of Corporale Governance as slipulated in Regulation 34 of the LODR Regulations and the same is
annexed hereto.
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E. Adoption of Discretionary Requirements under the LODR Regulations 2015

The following non-mandatory requirements under Part E of Schedule |l of the LODR Regulations to the extent they
have been adopted are mentioned below :

i) The Board: The Chairperson of the Company, who is the Non-Executive Director isn't provided any
maintenance of office and reimbursement of expenses.

ii) Shareholder Rights: The Company has nol adopted the practice of sending out half - yearly declaration of
financial performance to shareholders. Quarterly results as approved by the Board are disseminated to the
Stock Exchanges and updated on the website of the Company: www.adarshplant.com

i) Modified Opinion(s) in the Audit Report : There are no modified opinions in the audit report.

iv) Separate posts of Chairperson and the Managing Director or the Chief Executive Officer; The
Company has created the separate post for the Chairperson and the Managing Director of the Company. The
Chairperson is the Non-Executive Director of the Company, related to the Managing Director as per definition
of the term “relative” defined under the Companies Act, 2013.

v) Reporting of Internal Auditor: In accordance with the provisions of Section 138 of the Act, the Company has
appointed an Internal Auditor who reports to the Audit Committee. Quarterly internal audit reports are
submitted to the Audit Committee which reviews the audit reports and suggests necessary action,

F. Policy for determining material subsidiary

Since the Company does not have any subsidiary, the need for a policy for determining material subsidiary is not
applicable,

G. Commodity trading/ hedaing activities

The Company does not deal in future and options related to commodities and therefore the disclosure pursuant to
SEBI circular dated 15" November, 2018 is not required to be given. The Company does not enter into any
derivative instruments for trading or speculative purposes.

H. Details of utilization of funds raised throu referential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specifie

under Regulation 32 (7A)

The Company has not raised any funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as
specified under Regulation 32 (7TA).

I, rtificate from Practicing Com Secrela

Mr. D. G. Bhimani, practicing Company secretary, has provided a Certificate, in accordance with the provisions of
Schedule V to the LODR Regulations that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred
or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the SEBI/ MCA or any such
statutory authority, which is annexed hereto and forms part of this Report.

J. The Board has accepted all the recommendations, ifany, of any of its Committees, which is mandatorily required, in
the financial year 2024-25.

K. Details relating to fees paid to the Statutory Auditors for all the services rendered during the period under review are
provided inthe Notes to the Financial Statements.

L. Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal)

Act, 2013,

The Company is commitied to ensuring that all employees work in an environment that not only promotes diversity
and equality but also mutual trust, equal opportunity and respect for human rights. The Company is also committed
to provide a work environment that ensures every woman employee is treated with dignity, respect and accorded
equal treatment.

The disclosures and details related to sexual harassment of women in workplace have been provided in the Board
Report.
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M. The Company hasn't made any loans and advances to any firms/ companies in which Directors have an inlerest.

N. Details of material subsidiary
Since the Company does not have any subsidiary, the need for the disclosure of the same is not applicable.

0. The Company has duly complied with all the requirements of para (2) to (10) of Schedule V read with provisions of
Regulation 34(3) and of the LODR Regulations.

P. Disclosure on Compliance with Carparate Gavernance requirement

The Company has complied with all the corporate governance requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and
clauses (b)to (i) of Regulation 46 (2) of the LODR Regulations. The Corporate Governance Report of the Company
for the year 2024-25 is in compliance with the applicable requirements of the LODR Regulations.

Q. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account

The Company doesn't have any unclaimed physical share certificates and hence, the need for disclosure of the
same is not applicable.

R. Disclosure of certain types of agreements binding listed entities

The Company has not entered into any agreements whose information is required to be disclosed under clause 5A
of paragraph A of Part Aof Schedule |ll of the LODR Regulations.

CEO/CFOQO CERTIFICATION

The Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company have certified to the Board regarding review of
financial statements for the year, compliance with the Accounting Standards, maintenance of internal control for
financial reporting, accounting policies, etc. The same is provided elsewhere in this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE BY PRACTICING COMPANY SECRETARY

Certificate from M/s. D. G. Bhimani & Associates, a firm of Company Secretaries in Praclice, confirming compliance
with ?nd tions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated under Regulation 34 of the LODR Regulations, is attached to
this Report.

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

Effective communication of information is an essential component of Corporate Governance. It is a process of sharing
information, ideas, thoughts, opinions and plans to all stakeholders, which promotes transparency, accountability and
confidence in the stakeholders and strengthens robust shareholder relations. The Company regularly interacts with
Members through multiple channels of communication such as results announcement, annual report, media releases,
Company's website and subject specific communications.

« Website: Your Company's Website www.adarshplant.com in Investors section provides comprehensive
information on its financial performance, operational performance, announcements and periodical compliances of
the LODR Regulations.

« Financial Results: The annual, half-yearly and quarterly results are regularly submitted to the Stock Exchanges in
accordance with the LODR Regulations and also are published in newspapers, in Western Times (English and
Guijarati Edition). The same are also available on the Company's website www.adarshplant.com by accessing the
web-link: hitps.//adarshplant.com/shareholders/

« Annual Report: The Annual Report containing, inter- alia, the Financial Statements, the Board Report, the
Independent Auditors' Report and other important information is circulated to the Members and others enlilled
thereto. The same is available on the Company's website www.adarshplant.com by accessing the web-link:

hitps://adarshplanl.com/annual-reports/

* Corporate Filing: Announcements, Periodical Financial Results, Shareholding Pattern, etc. of the Company are
regularly filed by the Company and are available on the website of the BSE Ltd.— www.bseindia.com, where on the
shares of the Company are listed.
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GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION
a) Annual General Meeting for FY 2024-25

Compliance Officer : Ms, Dhwani Shah

Date, Time and Venue of :  Saturday, 27" September, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. at the

the 33® Annual General Registered Office of the Company

Meeting

Financial Year : 17 April, 2024 to 317 March, 2025

Book Closure Dates . Sunday, 21" September, 2025 to Tuesday, 23™ September,
2025 (both days inclusive).

Last Date of Receipt of :  Thursday, 25" September, 2025 at 10.55 AM.

Proxy Forms

Registrar and Share : MUFG Intime India Private Limited

Transfer Agents (formerly Link Intime India Private Limited)
506-508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1),
05! Floor, Besides Gala Business Centre,
Off C G Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380 009.
Phone No.: (079) 26465179/ 5186/ 5187
E-Mail Id: ahmedabad@in.mpms.mufg.com

ISIN of DEMAT Shares - INE 627D01016

a) Listing on Stock Exchanges

The Company's Equity Shares are listed and traded on the following Stock Exchanges:

Name Address Stock Code
BSE Limited (BSE) 1st Floor, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 526711

Dalal Street, Mumbai 400 001
Listing Fees
Listing fees for the BSE Limited for the year 2024-25 has been paid.
a) Market Price Data

The delails of monthly high/low market price of the Equity shares of the Company at BSE Ltd (BSE) for the year
under review is provided here under:

Month | High | Lew | Seread | montn | b | Low | e
Apr-24 35.70 23.51 12.19 Oct-24 35.90 27.00 8.90
May-24 32.00 21.07 10.693 MNov-24 34 .97 2755 T.42
Jun-24 36.00 2575 10.25 Dec-24 40.00 29.55 10.45
Jul-24 39.98 29.27 10.71 Jan-25 37.28 28.60 8.68
Aug-24 38.50 28.12 10.38 Feb-25 33.86 24.88 8.98
Sep-24 36.29 30.35 5.94 Mar-25 30.55 23.21 7.34

*(Source: www.bseindia.com)
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a) Company's closing share price movement during the financial year 2024-25 on BSE vis-a-vis S&P BSE
Sensex
86, 000, 00 40. 00
84, 000, 00 35.00
82, 000. 00
0. 00
80, 000, 00
- 8, 000, 00 v\ 25, 090
:“E 000, 00 / 20 E
B o =t Sh—
ol . =
@
4, 000. 00 15.00
72, 000. 00
10. 00
70, 000. 00
88, 000. 00 .80
66, 000, 00 T— . 0. 00
dpr-24 | May-24 ‘i’f Jul=24| Aug-24| Sep-24 | Oct-24 | Nov-24 | Dec-24! Jan-25|Fab-25 |Mar-25
—BSE (74, 482, [73, 961, [79, 032 [81, 741. 82, 365. |84, 299, [79, 389, [79, 802. [78, 139. [77. 500. |73, 198.[77, 414
—3PPL| 26.99 | 26.00 | 34 75 | 29.66 | 34.88 | 30.40 | 28.93 | 34.49 | 34.75] 31.29 | 25.09 | 26. 78
*(Source: www.bseindia.com).

Share Transfer System in accordance with the proviso to Reqgulation 40(1) of the LODR Requlations.

e)

In terms of Regulation 40(1) of SEBI LODR Regulations, as amended, securities can be transferred only in
dematerialised form w.e.f. 1" April, 2019, except in case of request recelved for transmission or transposition of
securities. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to consider converting their holdings to
dematerialised form. Transfers of equity shares in electronic form are affected through the depositories with no
involvement of the Company.

Further, pursuant to the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD/P/Cirf2025/97 dated 02" July, 2025, a
one-time special window has been opened only for the re-lodgement of transfer deeds, which were lodged prior
to 01" April, 2019 and rejected/ returned/ not attended due to deficiency in the documents/ process/ otherwise. This
special window shall remain opened for a period of six months from 07" July, 2025 to 06" January, 2026.
Accordingly, all eligible shareholders are requested to submit their share transfer deeds along with requisite
documents to the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent (RTA) at MUFG Intime India Private Limited,
Unit; Adarsh Plant Protect Limited, 506-508, Amarnath Business Centre-1 (ABC-1), 05" Floor, Besides Gala
Business Cenlre, Off C G Road, Navrangpura, Ahmedabad 380009; Phone No.: (079) 26465179/5186/5187, E-
Mail Id: ahmedabad@in.mpms.mufg.com.

The Company has published the Notice in the Newspaper regarding opening of such Special Window in English
and Gujarati editions of Western Times on 28.07.2025. A copy of the same Is available on the Company's website:
www.adarshplant.com and the BSE Limited's website.

Dematerialisation of Shares and Liquidity

The Company's shares are available for dematenalization with both the depositories viz. National Securities
Depository Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository Services (India) Limited (CDSL). As on 31" March, 2025,
9494845 shares (95.79%) of the Company are held in demalerialized form.

The Shareholders holding shares of the Company in physical form are requested to dematerialize their shares for
easy and expeditious transfers thereof. Your Company confirms that the promoters and their group holdings are
fully converted into electronic form and the same is in line with the circulars issued by SEBI.
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g) Reconciliation of Share Capital Audil

A qualified practicing Company Secrelary carries out a share capital audit to reconcile the total admitted equity
share capital with the National Securities Depository Limited ("NSDL") and the Central Depository Services (India)
Limited ("CDSL") and the total issued and listed equity share capital. This audit is carried out every quarter and the
report thereon is submitted to the Stock Exchanges where the Company's shares are listed. The audit report
confirms that the total issued/ pald-up capital Is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form and
the total number of dematerialised shares held with NSDL and CDSL.

h) Distribution of shareholding of shares of the Cormpany as on 31"March, 2025 is as follows:

(A) Distribution of Shares as per Category as on 31" March, 2025

Cﬂé?::'? Category of Shareholders Sha:';;fders TB;LT:E' of % of (A+B)
(A) Shareholding of Promoter and
Promoter Group 2 7000055 70.63%
(B) Public Shareholding - - -
| Institutions
() Public Shareholding - Non -
Institutions 5308 2911445 29.37%
GRAND TOTAL (A+B+C) 5310 99,11,500 100.00%
(B) Distribution of Shares by size of holding as on 31" March, 2025
Category of No. of shareholders % Holders No. of Shares % Shares
Shares
1 to 500 4895 91.44% 578345 5.84%
501 to 1000 203 3.79% 168506 1.70%
1001 to 2000 113 2.11% 166272 1.68%
2001 to 3000 34 0.64% 84947 0.86%
3001 to 4000 11 0.21% 38083 0.39%
4001 to 5000 17 0.32% 78157 0.79%
5001 to 10000 35 0.65% 266480 2.69%
10001 and above 45 0.84% 8529810 86.06%
TOTAL 5353 100.00% 9911500 100.00%

Note: As per shareholding pattern filed with the BSE Limited, number of shareholders as on 31"March, 2025 has been
clubbed on the basis of PAN of the shareholders of the Company.

The quarterly shareholding patterns filed with the stock exchanges are also available on the website of the Company
and on the website of the BSE Limited.

A e s

Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

604, Vitthal Udyognagar—388 121
Dist. Anand, Gujarat

E-mail ID: adarshplant@hotmail.com

Contact No.: (02692) 236705-706
By the Order of the Board of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Sd/-
Mr. Naishadkumar Patel
Chairperson

Date: 26" July, 2025 (DIN: 00082748)
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Declaration by the Managing Director

STATEMENT ON DECLARATION BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS UNDER SECTION 134 OF THE
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

In accordance with Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, |, Atish N. Patel, Managing Director of Adarsh Plant
Protect Limited, hereby confirm that as per my knowledge and belief, the Independent Directors of the Company have
affirmed their compliance with the criteria of independence during Financial Year 2024-25 as stipulated in Section 149
(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Schedule IV - Code of Independence to the said Act (as amended from time
totime) and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (as amended from time to

time).
For Adarsh Plant Protect Limited
Sd/-
Mr. Atish Patel
Managing Director
Date: 26" May, 2025 (DIN: 00084015)

CERTIFICATIONBY THEMD AND CFOAS REQUIRED UNDER REGULATIONS 17(8) AND 33(2)(a) OF THE SEBI
(LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015

The Board of Directors,

Adarsh Plant Protect Limited,

604, GIDC Estate,

Vitthal Udyognagar— 388121,

Dist. Anand, Gujarat.

We, Mr. Atish Patel, the Managing Director and Mr. Himanshu Bhoi, the Chief Financial Officer of the Company, certify
tothe Board that:

A. We have reviewed the Standalone and Consolidated Audited Financial Results for the year ended on 31" March,
2025 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(1) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any malterial fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

(2) these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with
existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

B. There are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year
which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company's code of conduct.

C. We acoeplt responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that they
have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and
we have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal
mgtmts. if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these
deficiencies.

D. Wehaveindicated. to the extent applicable, to the Auditors and the Audit Commitlee:
(1) significantchanges in internal control over financial reporting during the year;

(2) significant changes in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements; and

(3) instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the listed entity's internal control system over
financial reporting.

For Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Sd/- Sd/-
Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Date:26" May, 2025
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Certificate of Corporate Governance

DECLARATION BY THE MANAGING DIRECTOR UNDER REGULATION 34(3) OF THE SEBI (LISTING
OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 REGARDING ADHERENCE TO
THE COMPANY'S CODE OF CONDUCT

In accordance with Regulations 34(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 with the Stock Exchanges, | hereby confirm that all Directors and Senior Management personnel of the
Company have affirmed their compliance with the Cede of Conduct laid down by the Company, as applicable to them
forthe Financial Yearended 31 March, 2025,

For Adarsh Plant Protect Limited
Sd/-

Mr. Alish Patel

Managing Director

Date: 26" May, 2025 (DIN: 00084015)
L S,
CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
TO THE MEMBERS OF ADARSH PLANTS PROTECT LIMITED

To
The members of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited.

Vithal Udyognagar.

1. |, Dineshkumar. G. Bhimani, proprietor of M/s D. G, Bhimani& Asscciates, practicing company secretaries, Anand,
the Secretarial Auditor of ADARSH PLANT PROTECT LIMITED (‘the Company’), have examined the
compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by the Company, for the year ended on 31 March 2025, as
stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2) and paras C and D of Schedule V of the
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (the Listing Regulations).

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY

2. The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. This
responsibility includes the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control and procedures to ensure
compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance stipulated in the Listing Regulations.

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY

3. My responsibility is limited to examining the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for
ensuring compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit ner an expression of
opinion on the financial statements of the Company.

4. | have examined the books of account and other relevant records and documents maintained by the Company for
the purposes of providing reasonable assurance on the compliance with Corporate Governance requirements by
the Company.

OPINION

5. Based on my examination of the relevant records and according to the information and explanations provided to
us and the representations provided by the Management, | certify that the Company has complied with the
conditions of Corporale Governance as stipulated in regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46(2)
and paras C and D of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations during the year ended 31 March 2025,

6. |state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or
effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs of the Company

For D G Bhimani& Associates
Place : Anand Dineshkumar G. Bhimani
Date : 30th May, 2025 Company Secretary
UDIN : F008064G000503702 CP. No. 6628
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Certificate of Non Disqualification of Directors

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

To,

The Members of

Adarsh Plant Protect Limited
604 G.I.D.C.

Vithal Udyognagar-388121.

| have examined the relevant registers, racords, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Adarsh
Plant Protect Limited having CIN L29210GJ1992P1.CO17845 and having registered office at 604 G.I.D.C.
VithalUdyognagar-388121 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before me by the Company for the
purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i)
ofthe Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directlors |dentification
Number (DIN) status at the porial www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the
Company & its officers, | hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as staled below for the
Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such other

Statutory Authority,
Sr. No. Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in

Company
1 Naishadkumar Naginbhai Patel 00082749 11/04/1994
2 Atish Naishadhkumar Patel 00084015 20/12/2004
3 Jyotikaben Naishadhkumar Patel 00084068 20/12/2004
4 Bipinkumar Thakkar 10044474 13/02/2023
5 Vipul Raval 10044523 13/02/2023
6 Chandrashekhar Sureshchandra Trivedi 10710050 14/09/2024

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. Our respensibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For D. G. Bhimani & Associates
Place : Anand
Date : 30th May, 2025
UDIN : FOD8064G000503460
Dineshkumar G. Bhimani
Company Secretary
CP No.: 6628
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Secretarial Audit Report

Form No. MR-3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THR FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED31ST MARCH, 2025

[Pursuant to section 204({1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managenal Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

Adarsh Plant Protect Limited.
Vithal Udyognagar.

We have conducted the Secrelarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by Adarsh Plant Protect Limited (CIN L29210GJ1992PLC017845) (hereinafter called the
company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in accordance with the Guidance Notes issued by the Institute of
Company Secrelaries of India and in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for avaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the company's books, papers, minutes, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial audit, We hereby report that in our opinion, the company has, during
the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31" March, 2025 Complied with the statutory provisions listed
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board- processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and the other records maintained by
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited for the financial year ended on 31" March, 2025 according to the provisions of:

(i) The CompaniesAct, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under;
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rules made there under;
(i)  TheDepositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;

(iv)  Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings— As informed
to us, there were no FDItransaction in the Company during the year under review.

(V) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992('SEBI Act'):-

(a) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015;

() The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;
(d) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars lo an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client — Company has appointed
SEBI registered Category-| Registrar and Share Transfer Agent.
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Secretarial Audit Report

We further report that there were no actions/events in pursuance of the following regulalions requiring compliance
thereof by the Company during the period of this report:

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018;

(b)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009,

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018;

(vi)  OtherApplicable Acts

As Informed to us, there are no laws which have specific applicabllity to the Company other than general laws
applicable to industry generally.

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(1) Secrelarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secrelaries of India.
(i) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with BSE Limited.

(i)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation 2015.

During the Period under review the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules,
Regulations, Guidelines, standards, etc. mentioned above.

We further report that

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Direclors, Non-Executive
Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Direclors that took place during
the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.

Adequale notice is given lo all the directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent al least seven days in advance, and a system exisls for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

further report that, based on the information provided and the representation made by the Company and also on the
review of the compliance cerlificates/reports taken on record by the Board of Direclors of the Company, in my opinion
there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the
Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines

For D. G. Bhimani & Associates
Place: Anand
Date: 30"May, 2025
UDIN: FO0B064G000515593
Dineshkumar G. Bhimani
Company Secretary
CPNo.: 6628

Note: This report is 1o be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as 'ANNEXURE A’ and forms an integral
part of this report.
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ANNEXURE A

To,

The Members,

Adarsh Plant Protect Limited.
Vithal Udyognagar.

Qurreportof even date is lo be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. Our responsibility s to
express anopinion on these secrelarial records based on our audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure that
correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe thal the processes and practices, we followed
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have not verified the correclness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
gompany.

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and
regulations and happening of events elc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of managemenl. Our examination was limited o the verification of procedures on tesl basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as lo the future viability of the company nor of the
effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.

For D. G. Bhimani & Associates
Place: Anand
Date: 30th May, 2025
UDIN: F008064G000515593

Dineshkumar G. Bhimani
Company Secretary
CPNo.: 6628




ANNEXURE VI: Management Discussion and Analysis

INDIA'S ECONOMIC GROWTH: ABRIGHT SPOTAMIDST GLOBALUNCERTAINTY

India's economic growth trajectory has been a beacon of resilience and dynamism, garnering global attention amidst
an environment of global tensions and economic stagnancy. According to FICCI report, softening price levels and
ensuing monetary policy easing in some of the major economies, positive momentum in interest sensitive sectors,
and continued recovery in service sector are expected to bode well for the growth prospects this year. According to
OECD's latest assessment on economic outlook, global growth is forecasted at 3.3 percent in 2025, marking a
marginal increase vis-a-vis the 3.2 percent growth estimate of 2024. The growth is expected to remain below the pre-
pandemic average (2013-2019) of about 3.4 percent. Also, variation in growth trajectories across countries remains.

India's economic outlook for 2025 reflects cautious optimism, amidst the backdrop of persisting extermnal headwinds.
India's economic oullook for 2025-26 is generally positive, with most forecasts projecting a growth rate of around
6.2% o 6.5%. The Reserve Bank of India projects a real GDP growth of 6.5% for 2025-26, says PIB. The World Bank
has also maintained its growth forecast for India at 6.3% for the fiscal year 2025-26. Some reports suggest that India
has the potential to become the world's third-largest economy by 2030, Despite some downward revisions, India is
still projected to be the fastest-growing major economy, outpacing many global and regional competitors,

KEY DRIVERS OF ECONOMIC GROWTH

Strong Domestic Demand: Strong domestic demand, especially private consumption and government spending,
are expected to be the main engines of growth. On the positive side, participating economists expect consumer
spending to gain momentum, driven by an improved outlook for the agriculture sector, which is likely to bolster rural
consumption and sentiment in the first half of the next fiscal year.

Moderating Inflation: Inflationary pressures have been moderating, providing a more stable macroeconomic
environment. The Reserve Bank of India's prudent monetary policy has helped keep inflation in check, fostering a
conducive environment for investrment and consumption,

Manufacturing Resurgence: Initiatives such as "Make in India" and the Production Linked Incentive (PLI) schemes
are revitalizing the manufacturing sector. Increased domestic and foreign investments in manufacturing are boosting
industrial output and creating employment opportunities.

Service Sector Resilience: India's service sector, particularly IT and IT-enabled services, continues to perform
strongly. The sector remains a key driver of economic growth, contributing significantly to GDP and exports.

Investment: On investment front, the government's focus on capital expenditure is expected to remain a key growth
driver in the year 2025-26. Investments in infrastructure and allied sectors—such as roads, housing, logistics, and
railways—are anlicipated lo further economic momentum. Additionally, the services seclor, particularly hospitality,
real estate, health, and educalion, is expected lo contribule to creation of fresh capacity.

Resilience to Global Winds: India's diversified economy and prudent economic policies have helped it navigate
global economic uncertainties better than many other economies. The country's resilience Is further supported by its
robust fareign exchange reserves and a stable financial system.

Supply Chain Diversification: As global companies seek to diversify their supply chains, India is emerging as a
preferred destination. The government's policies to enhance ease of doing business and improve logistics
infrastructure are making India an attractive hub for global manufacturing and services.

ECONOMIC OVERVIEW

In the midst of global tensions and slagnancy, India is poised to benefit from global supply chain diversification away
from China. Expanding trade and investment parinerships across agriculture, defence, energy, healthcare, and
emerging technologies will foster mutual growth. Development of high-quality industrial clusters with robust
backward and forward linkages is essential for India to integrate into diversifying global supply chains.
Complementing this effort, infrastructure upgrades and seclor-specific policies can attract greater foreign direct
investment (FDI).

The Union Budget for 2025-26, as presented on 1sl February 2025, amidst global economic uncertainties and
moderating domestic growth, focused on following factors:

-Boosling Private Consumption
-Enhancing Capital Expenditure
-Strengthening Agriculture and Rural Economy
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INDUSTRY STRUCTURE, DEVELOPMENTS, AND OUTLOQK
« Qutlock

Your Company's products are relaled to three segments: {i) Industrial Packaging, and (ii) Agriculture Plant and
Protect, and (ili) Smokeless chulhal Ecostove.

The Management of your Company expects the year 2025-26 to have a promising and prosperous growth in the
Company's overall performance. Business operations have resumed to normalcy, but macro-economic concems still
affect fluctuations in raw malerial prices. The Management is confidentin achieving growth in all segments, overcoming
the challenges ahead.

I.  Industrial Packaging

The future of the India industrial drums market appears promising, propelled by burgeoning e-commerce,
pharmaceutical, and food industries. With the rise in demand for safe and durable packaging solutions, the
market is likely to witness strong growth,

India industrial drums market is experiencing consistent growth with increasing demand for effective storage and
transport facilities in diverse industries. As per 6W research, India Industrial Drums Market Size is projecled to
reach at a CAGR 8.5% during the 2025 to 2031. The Indian industrial drums market is projected lo experience
steady growth due to secure storage solutions across various industries, including chemicals, paints, and food
processing.

ii. Agriculture and Plant Protection

Agriculture and allied sectors are central to the Indian economy. The outlook for the agricultural equipment and
plant protection market in 2025 is positive, with strong growth expected due to factors like increased food
demand, precision agriculture adoption, and technological advancements. The market is experiencing a shift
lowards more sustainable and efficient praclices, with innovations like smart sensors, drones, and Al-powered
tools gaining traction.

The Indian agrcultural equipment market is projected to grow significantly, with a CAGR of 8.63% between 2025
and 2033, according to IMARC Group. Technavio forecasts CAGR of 8.4% for the penod 2025-2029.

Qverall, the agricultural equipment and plant protection sectoris poised for significant growth and transformation
in 2025, driven by technological innovation and a growing emphasis on sustainability.

ili. Smokeless Chulha and Ecostove

The outlook for eco-stoves in 2025 is generally positive, with continued growth expected due to factors like
increasing energy costs, environmental awareness, and the push for energy-efficient solutions. However,
manufacturers face challenges like higher production costs related to advanced combustion lechnologies and
competition from other heating options like heat pumps.

+ Company Overview
« Performance for the Period
I.  Industrial Packaging Segment

The sales related to Industrial Packaging of your Company Is the major contributor to the revenue of the
Company. Increased marketing spend and an expanded sales team have resulted in a larger customer base,
projecting strong growth for the coming year. The Management has thoroughly discussed possible risks and
concems and has laken appropriate countermeasures. The efforts put in over the last couple of years to
increase the customer pool have provided long-term revenue visibility, which further helps in efficiently
managing overheads and working capital to increase overall profitability. The packaging induslry is one of the
growing industries in India, and its dynamic nature requires periodic reviews and adaptations of stralegies
and plans.

This year, your Company has invested more in marketing activities to increase market penetration in the
industrial packaging segment, With a view to increase its share in the industrial packaging market, we have
shifted our focus from MS Barrel to Insulatled Composile Barrel so as lo provide reliable packaging that
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mitigates temperature variation for temperature sensitive products which leads to longer shelf life of the

matenal stored therein,

ji. Agriculture and Plant Protection Segment

The Management believes the agricultural industry will see a revival in the current year due to regular

monsoons and increased government spending on the agriculture sector. Additionally, increased spending
capacity, easy availability of funds, and rising disposable income can also lead to growth in this segment.

The agriculture and plant protection is yet to witness remarkable growth in sales. The margins were in line

with the Management's budget.

iii. Smokeless Chulha/Ecostove

The business of this product is yet to perform up to its potential, bul the Management is confident that it will do
well inthe coming years. The year witnessed a rapid growth in sales as compared to the previous year.

The Management has Increased its focus on this segment by taking vital steps In terms of increasing
marketing campaigns and creating awareness of the product, Government channels and exporl channels are
both underpenetrated for the product manufactured by the Company. The Company is positive about
increasing sales in this segment with a strong sustainable business approach.

+ Financial performance vis-a-vis Operational performance

A. Financial Highlights

(Rs. in Lakhs)

PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue from Operations 1749.70 1864.90
Other Income 0.95 0.28
Total Income 1750.65 1865.18
Profit before Finance Costs, Depreciation, Exceptional
Items, Extraordinary Items and Tax (3429 i
Less: Finance Costs 20.45 20.88
Profit before Depreciation, Exceptional Items, Extraordinary (104.70) 54.99
Items and Tax
Less: Depreciation/ Amortisation/ Impairment 7.18 6.39
Profit before Exceptional Items, Extraordinary Items and Tax (111.89) 48.60
Less; Exceptional Items and Extracrdinary Items 0.00 0.00
Profit before Tax (111.89 48.60
Less: Current Tax,  net of earlier year adjustments 0.00 0.00
Less: Deferred Tax 0.00 0.00
Profit after tax for the financial year (A) (111.89) 48.60
Total Other Comprehensive Income/ Loss (B) 0.44 0.00
Total Comprehensive Income for the financial year (A+B) (111.46) 48.60
Earnings Per Share (EPS in Rupees)
Basic (1.13) 0.49
Diluted (1.13) 0.49

‘Previous year’s figures are restated, regrouped, rearranged and recast, wherever considered necessary.
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B. Segmenl-wise Operational Performance

T ST T T

(Rs. in Lakhs)

Particulars 2024-25 2023-24
Revenue
a) Industrial Packaging 1566.48 1687.05
b) Agriculture and Plant Protection 9.25 13.86
¢} Smokeless Chulha and Ecostove 173.97 164.26
Tax liability

Since the Company has incurred loss since last many years, your Company was not falling in to liability to pay
taxes and this year too as there is large amount of carried forward losses your Company is not liable to pay any

lax,

C. Details of significant changes (i.e. change of 25% or more as compared lo the immediately previous financial
year)in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations therefor

Key Financial Ratios 2024-25 2023-24 Detailed explanation for
change of 25% or more, if
any
Debtors Turnover (days) 63.51 63.91 | incremental decrease in

turnover compared to
marginal decrease in number
of debtors

Inventory Turnover (days) 80.80 81.10 | incremental decrease in
turnover compared to
marginal decrease in
inventory level

Interest Coverage Ratio (limes) (4.45) 3.33
Current Ratio 1.36 1.71
Debt Equity Ratio (considering 12,22 3.08
long term and short -term debt)

Operating Profit Margin (%) (5.20) 3.73
Net Profit Margin (%) (6.39) 2.61

D. Detailsof any change in Returnon Net Worth as compared to the immediately previous financial year along with
a detailed explanation thereof

Return on Net Worth 2024-25 2023-24 Detailed explanation for
change of 25% or more, if any
Return on Net Worth ( 322.19) 33.25 decrease in net profit and
(PAT/ Net Worth) shareholders fund
Opportunities and Threats
I. Industrial Packaging Segment
Opportunities:

+ Growthin the Chemical and specially sector.

« Growth in Exports due to the government's push for increasing domestic production.
« Adding new products in the product portfolio

« Tapping new domeslic markels.
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Threats:
« Material Cost Volatility
« Logistics & Distribution Bottlenecks
« Limited Recycling and Reuse Infrastructure
« Quality and Safety Standards
+ Leakage and Tamper |ssues
+ Lack of Customization
ii.  Agriculture and Plant Protection Segment
Opportunities:
» Market Growth
» Technological Advancements
» Government Support
Threats:
Supply Chain Challenges
New entrants in the market
Substitute and alternative products.
Fluctuation in commadity prices.
Political Instability
fiil.  Smokeless Chulhaand Ecostove
Opportunities:
» Growing Demand
« Environmental Consciousness
« CostSavings
« Governmenl Support
« Technological Advancements.
» Diversification
«  Export Market.
» Developmentof new sales and distribution channels.
Threats:
High Initial Costs
« |Infrastructure Limitations
« Newentrantsinthe market.
« Raw Material Costs.
« Regulatory Hurdles.

* RisksandConcerns

The maijor risks faced by the Company in operations of its business are namely, availability of raw materials,
fluctuation in price of raw materials, inconsistency of overhead cost such freight, electricity and labor and
regulatory or political changes and their policies. To mitigate the same, the Company plans to procure the raw
materials and reduce lhe overhead cost so as to maximize profit. Your Directors are now rigorously looking for
measures to pursue all available infrastructural, manufacturing and financial resources to the fullest extent and in
the besl interesl of the Shareholders of the Company.

Risk Management

Your Company follows well-established and detailed risk assessment and minimisation procedures, which are
periodically reviewed by the Board. Your Company recognizes the importance of managing risk in the business to
sustain growth. The Management of your Company follows a structured and disciplined approach to Risk
Management in order to guide decisions on risk related issues and to mitigate various risks viz. operational risk,
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financial risk, regulatory risk, reputational risk, elc. Your Company has enfrusled the Audit Committee with the
responsibility of implementing and monitoring of the Risk Management Policy on a periodic basis.

The Company's risk Management approach strives to ensure sustainable business growth with stability and to
promote a pro-active approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks associated with the Company's
business and processes.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIRADEQUACY

Your Company is commilled to ensuring an effective internal control environment thatl provides reasonable
assurance regarding the effectiveness and efficiency of operations, adequacy of safeguarding of assels, reliability of
financial controls and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. The Company has adequate internal control
systemns commensurate with its size. Internal Auditor of the Company is entrusted the work of reviewing adequacy of
internal control system and frequency of Audit compliance with the existing Accounting Standards. The duty of the
Internal Auditor is to report to the Board of Directors and Audit Committee and place its report at every Audit
Committee Meeting and subsequent Board Meeting and also remain present to interact with Board and Audit
Committee for any suggestion ofimprovement in the Internal Control Audit Systems and steps to be taken thereon to
improve the Internal control system. The internal auditors ensure that internal controls are reviewed through the
periodical internal audit process in consultation with the Audit Committee. Internal auditors cover every operational
unit and all major corporate functions under the guidance of the Audit Committee of the Board.

The Audit Committee oversees the adequacy of the internal control environment through periodic reviews of audit
findings and monitoring implementations of internal audit recommendations through compliance reports. The
Certification by the Managing Director and the Chief Financial Officer of the Company has been provided elsewhere
in this Annual Report and discusses the adequacy of the internal control systems and procedures,

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCES

Your Company considers people as the most impertant and valuable assel and the backbone of its success, Your
Company's employees are highly efficient and committed to the growth of the business.

Your Company has well documented and updated policies in place to prevent any kind of discrimination and
harassment, including sexual harassment. The Whistle Blower Palicy plays an important role as a watchdog. The
lotal employee strength of your Company as on 31" March, 2025 stands at 39.

Cautionary Statement

The report of the Board of Direclors, Managemenl Discussions and Analysis Report are forward looking and
affirmative statements within the meaning of the applicable securities and regulations. The actual performance in the
coming years could differ from what is expressed or implied. The factors that could affect the Company's
performance are the economic and other faclors that affect the demand—supply balance in the domestic market,
changes in governmental regulations, policies, and tax laws and other statues and host of other incidental factors.

By the Order of the Board of
Adarsh Plant Protect Limited

Sd/-
Mr. Naishadkumar Patel
Chairperson

Date: 26" July, 2025 (DIN: 00082749)
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Independent Auditor’s Report

TO THE MEMBERS OF ADARSH PLANT PROTECT LIMITED

OPINION

We have audited the IND AS financlal statements (also known as Standalone IND AS Financial Statements) of
ADARSH PLANT PROTECT LIMITED ("the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March
2025, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other Comprehensive Income), Statement of Changes in Equity
and Statemenlt of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
standalone IND AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and
amended and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs (financial position) of
the Company as at 31st March, 2025, and its profit{financial performance including other comprehensive
income), the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on thal date.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit of the standalone IND AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of the Acl. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAl) together with the independence requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the Standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules there under, and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAl's Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Standalone IND AS financial statements.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the contex! of our audit of the
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.




Independent Auditor’s Report

Sr. No.

Key Audit Matters

Qur Response

Accuracy of recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosures of revenues and
other related balances in view of adoption of Ind
AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with
Customers" (new revenue accounting standard).

The application of the new revenue accounting
standard involves certain key judgments relating
to identification of distinct performance
obligations, determination of transaction price of
the identified performance obligations, effect of
variable considerations and the appropriateness
of the basis used to recognise revenue at a point
intime or over a period of time

Principal Audit Procedures

We assessed the Company's process to identify
the impact of adoption of the new revenue
accounting standard. Our audit approach
consisted testing of the design and operating
effectiveness of the internal controls and
substantive testing as follows:

i. Evaluated the design of internal controls
relating to implementation of the new
revenue accounting standard.

ii. Selected a sample of continuing and new
contracts, and tested the operating
effectiveness of the internal control, relating
to identification of the distinct performance
obligations and determination of transaction
price. We carried out a combination of
procedures involving enquiry and
observation, re-performance and inspection
of evidence in respect of operation of these
controls.

ili. Tested the relevant information technology
systems' access and change management
controls relating to contracts and related
information used in recording and disclosing
revenue in accordance with the new revenue
accounting standard.

Qur procedures did not identify any material
exceptions.

Defined benefit obligation

The valuation of the retirement benefit schemesin
the Company is determined with reference to
various actuarial assumptions including discount
rate, future salary increases, rate of inflation,
mortality rates and attrition rates. Due to the size
of these schemes, small changes in these
assumptions can have a material impact on the
estimated defined benefit obligation

We have examined the key controls over the process
involving member data, formulation of assumplions
and the financial reporting process in arriving at the
provision for retirement benefits. We tested the
controls for determining the actuarial assumplions
and the approval of those assumptions by senior
management. We found these key controls were
designed, implemented and operated effectively,
and therefore determined that we could place
reliance on these key controls for the purposes of our
audit.

We tested the employee data used in calculating the
obligation and where material,. From the evidence
obtained, we found the data and assumptions used
by management in the actuarial valuations for
retirement benefit obligations to be appropriate.
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4. Information Other than the Standalone IND AS financial statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report,
Managemenl Discussion and Analysis, Report on Corporate Governance, but does nol include the Standalone
IND AS financial statements and our auditor's report thereon,

Qur opinion on the Standalone IND AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the standalone IND AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone
IND AS financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

5. Management's Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these standalone IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation
of the Standalone IND AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from matenal
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone IND AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
6. Auditor's Responsibility for the audit of the Standalone financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone IND AS financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a matenal misstalement when it exists, Misstatements can
arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone IND AS financial
slatements.

B. As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

i) Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal cantrol.
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ii) Oblain an underslanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(1) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls

il) Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management

iv) Conclude on the approprialeness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audil evidence oblained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concem. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern

v) Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner thal achieves fair presentaltion

C. Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements that, individually or in
aggregate. makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the Standalone
Financial Statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative mateniality and qualitative factors in

i) planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and
i) toevaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the Standalone Financial Statements.

D. We communicate with those charged with govemance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

E. We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thoughtto bear on ourindependence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

F. From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumslances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is included in appendix A of this
auditor’s report

7. REPORTONOTHER LEGALAND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS

7.1 As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2016("the Order") issued by the Central
Government in terms of Seclion 143 (11) of the Act, we give in "Annexure A" - a slatement on the maltters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

7.2 Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

b) Inouropinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.
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c)

d)

The Balance Sheel, the Statement of Profit and Loss including other comprehensive income,
Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone IND AS financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act. read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts)
Rules,2014

On the basis of the writlen representations received from the directors as on 31st March, 2025 laken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31" March, 2025 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

f)  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company
and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B". Our
report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the
Company'’s internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with the
requirements of Section 197 (16) of the Act, as amended. Remuneration is not paid by the company to
its directors.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The Company has no pending litigations having impact on its financial position in its Standalone
INDAS financial statements;
ii. The Company has no long-term contracts including derivalive confracts requiring any
provision for any foreseeable losses;
ii. The company is not required to transfer any amount to Investors' Education and
Protection Fund.
For RAJANI SHAH & CO
Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn. No. 0121126W)

(CABRIJESH R. SHAH)
Proprietor

Mem. No.: 109264

Anand,

Date: 30/05/2025

UDIN: 25109264BMHZAGT7429
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APPENDIX A- AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS PART OF AN AUDIT IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAS, WE EXERCISE PROFESSIONAL JUDGEMENT AND
MAINTAIN PROFESSIONAL SCEPTICISM THROUGHOUT THE AUDIT. WE ALSO:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion, The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulling from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal financial controls relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Acl, we are also responsible for expressing
our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whelher a material uncertainty exists related lo events or conditions thal may cast
significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report io the related disclosures in the
Standalone financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinien. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence oblained uplo the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and conlent of the Standalene financial statements, including the

disclosures, and whether the Standalone financial slatements represent the underlying lransaclions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnilude of misstatements in the Standalone financial stalements thal, individually or in
aggregate, makes it probable thal the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements
in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the Standalone financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
malters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about
the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
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“ANNEXURE A" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ADARSH PLANT PROTECT LIMITED

1) In respect of its Fixed Assels:

The company is in the process of updating records showing full particulars, including  quantitative details and
situation of Fixed Assets;

a) As explained to us, the Assets have been physically verified by the management in accordance with a
regular programme of verification, which in our opinion is reasonable, considering the size and the nature
of its business. The frequency of verification is reasonable and no material discrepancies have been
noticed on such physical verification;

b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

ii)  Theinventory has been physically verified by the management during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of
verification is reasonable. No material discrepancies were noticed on such physical verification.

i)  The company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured during the year to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act.
Accordingly, the clauses 3(iii) (a), (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

iv)  Inouropinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with
the provisions of Section 185and 186 of the Act, with respect to loans and investments made during the year.

v)  The Company has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Provisions of Section 73 to 76 of the Act,
and the rules framed hereunder from the public.

vl)  According to the information and explanations given to us, Central Government has not prescribed
maintenance of cost records under section 148 (1) of the Act.

vi) a) The company is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’
State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods & Services Tax, duty of customs, cess and any other statutory dues
with appropriate authorities, where applicable. According to the information and explanations given to us,
there are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of such statutory dues which have remained
outstanding as at 31st March, 2025 for a period of more than six months from the date they became

payable.

b) According to the records of the company, there are no dues outstanding of income-tax, sales-lax, service
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, goods and services tax and value added tax on account of any
dispules:

viil)  The company has not defaulled in repayment of its loans or borrowings to banks. The Company does not have
any borrowings by way of debentures.

iX)  The Company has not raised any moneys by way of Initial public offer or further Public offer {(Including debt
instruments). Moneys raised by way of Term Loan were applied for the purpose for which those are raised.

x)  Onthe basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or any material fraud on the company by its officers or employees has been noticed or reported
during the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the management.
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xi)  The managerial remuneration has not been paid/provided by the company.

xii)  The company is not a nidhi Company and accordingly provisions of clause (xii) of Para 3 of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

xiit)  On the basis of our examination and according to the information and explanations given to us, we report that
all the transaction with the related parties are in compliance with Section 177 and 188 of the Act, and the details
have been disclosed in the Financial statements in Refer Nole 24(e) as required by the applicable accounting
slandards.

xiv) The company has not made any preferential allolment or private placement of share or fully or partly paid
convertible debentures during the year and accordingly provisions of clause (xiv) of Para 3 of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the
company, the company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected
with the directors. Accordingly, provisions of clause (xv) of Para 3 of the Order are not applicable to the
company.

xvi) The company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and
accordingly, provisions clause({xvi) of Para 3 of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For RAJANI SHAH & CO
Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. 0121126W)

(CA BRIJESH R SHAH)Proprietor
Mem. No.: 109264

Anand

Date: 30/05/2025

UDIN: 25109264BMHZAGT429
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"ANNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE STANDALONE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ADARSH PLANT PROTECT LIMITED

1. REPORTONTHEINTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING UNDER CLAUSE
(I) OF SUB-SECTION 3 OFSECTION 143 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 ("the Act")

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of ADARSH PLANT PROTECT
LIMITED ("the Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date,

2, MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based
on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company's
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required underthe Act.

3.  AUDITORS'RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by Institute of Chartered
accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Acl,
2013, 1o the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the Guidance
Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects. Our audit involves performiing
procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of intemal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of matenal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe thal the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
auditopinion on the Company's internal financial controls system aver financial reporting.

4. MEANING OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records
that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements In accordance with generally accepled accounlting principles, and that
receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assels that could have a

material effect on the financial statements.
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5. INHERENTLIMITATIONS OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, Including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due lo error or
fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over
financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

6. OPINION

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at
March 31, 2025, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For RAJANI SHAH & CO

Chartered Accountants
(Firm Regn. No. 0121126W)

(CABRIJESH R SHAH)
Proprietor

Mem. No.: 109264

Anand,

Date: 30/05/2025

UDIN : 25109264BMHZAGT7429




Standalone Balance sheet
As at 31stMarch, 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)
- As at As at
PRt ot 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
ASSETS
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 2 (a) B63.72 48.89
Capital Work-in-FProgress 2 (b) 5.60 5.60
Other Intangible Assels - -
Non-Current Investment - -
Financial Assels:
- Trade Recelvables 3 - -
- Loans 4 - -
- Others financial assets 5 26.95 2291
Other non-current assets G - -
Current Assets
Invantories i 387.34 414 .37
Financial Assels:
- Invastments - -
- Trade Recelvables 3 276.20 332.74
- Cash and cash Equivalents 8 10.10 23.00
- Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents a9 - -
- Loans 4 - -
- Others financial assets 5 .81 11.47
Current Tax Assets (Net) 2.74 2.95
Other current assets 6 10.48 36.55
TOTAL ASSETS 792.93 B98.48
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity Share Capital SOCE 8991.15 991.15
Other Equity SOCE (956.42) (844 .96)
Total Equity 34.73 146.19
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities:
- Borrowings 10 242 .81 268.08
- Trade Payables 11 - -
- Other Financial Liabilities 12 - -
Provisions - -
Deferrad Tax Liabilities (Net) 13 s :
Other non-current liabilities 14 3.60 317
Current Liabilities
Financial Liabilities: - -
- Borrowings 10 181.69 182.73
- Trade Payables 11 233.12 240.59
- Other Financial Liabilities 12 1.08 0.87
Other Current Liabilities 14 04 .87 56.83
Provisions 14 (A ) 1.02 1.02
Current Tax Liabllities (Net)
Total Liabilities 758.21 752.29
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 792.93 B598.48
Significant Accounting Policies 1
The Notes are an integral part of thase financial statements
This is the Balance Sheel referrad 1o in our report of even date
For Rajani Shah & Co. Atish N, Patal Naishadkumar N. Palal
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Chairperson
Firm Reg.No 121128W DIN -00084015 DIN -0008Z748
Hrijesh R, Shah Dhwani Shah Himanzhu B. Bhol
Proprietor Company Secretary Chief Financlal Officer
Mem. No. 109264 Mem, No. A23445

V U Nagar, Dated 30th May, 2025
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Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

For the year ended 31% March 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)
.. L Year Ended Year Ended
LRCCC R 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

INCOME

Revenue from Operations 15 1.749.70 1.864.90

Other Income 16 0.95 028

TOTAL INCOME 1,750.65 1,865.18

EXPENSES

Cost of materials consumed 17 1,254.55 1,608.36

Erhangas in inventories of Finished Goods, Stock-in-Trade and Work-in- 18 71,48 (172.66)

ogress

Employee Benefits expense 18 82.24 85.73

Finance Cosls 20 2045 2088

Depreciation and Amortisation expense 2(a)& (c 7.19 65.39

Other Expenses 21 416.65 266.87

TOTAL EXPENSES 1,862.54 1,816.57

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (111.89) 48.60

TAX EXPENSE

Current Tax - =

Deferred Tax = :

TOTAL TAX EXPENSE . .

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (111.89) 48.60

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Items thal will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss

Remeasurements of Defined benefil plans 0.44 }

Income Tax relating to items that will nat be reclassified to Profit or Loss

ltems that may be reclassified to Profit or Loss. - )

Designated Cash Flow Hedges - )

Income tax relating to items that may be reclassified to Profit or Loss - )

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX 0.44 -
| TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR (111.46) 48.60

EARNINGS PER EQUITY SHARE 24 (a)

Basic (1.13) 0.49

Diluted (1.13) 0.48

Significant Accounting Policies 1

The Notes are an integral part of these financial statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Rajani Shah & Co. Alish N, Patal Naishadkumar N, Palal
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Chalrperson

Firm Req.No.121126W DIN -00084015 DIN -00082744
Brijesh R, Shah Dhwanl Shah Himanshu B. Bhal
Proprietor Company Secretary Chief Financlal Officer
Mem No. 109264 Mem, No. A234446

V U Nagar, Dated 30th May, 2025
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Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31stMarch 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)
EQUITY SHARE CAP(TAL As at 31 March 2025 As at 31 March 2024
Numbaor Amaunt Amount
Auithanrissd Sharm Canitel 1.00,00.000 1.000.00 1.000.00
tuued Shane Capited 82, 11,500 8g1.16 a81.15
Subscribed Share Capital 9.11,500 201,15 891.15
Fuilly Paitl-up Shiare Caplial 29 11 500 591 16 an1 15
Balanoe at the beginning of the yoar 89.11.600 881.16 891.15
Changes in sguily share capital during the yaos i . .
imsned during the perind ) ) )
Booght back during tha poriod = ~ ~
Honis shisiug s dud |y ther period - -
Sham Splt during the period . . i
Shiares consolidaled during i poricod ~ B ~
Equity Employae Stock Optiong gxorcised dunng he panod - . .
Shares farfailed during the period - - .
Shares cancalled by capital reduction during s penod N N R
Sharo warrants axarcigad dunng the parod .
.. Baiance at tha and of tha roporting year #,11,500 99118 99195,

Rights, preferances nnd mm::tm-u:ﬂnnqunmmummm ri:tmﬂnmm tha Mhﬂhﬂﬂmuilndmwuuw

Tha Campany has anly ang class of aguity shans having par vilus of Re. 10 e sham. Each Iml:lurufumity shire i entiin Lo one vole pur shiar, In the event of
puidabon of the Company, (he holder of the aguily shars will ba antitls o eooive romein ng asssts of the Campany. Thi disribulion will be in proportion o the numibser
af equily shiras tild by e shars hoidem.

Shares held by Holding, Ultimate Halding, H-al-li!riii hﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁlﬂ HHﬂﬁﬂ-. MHHHHMH 31,03.2025 31,03.2024
Associates of Ultimats Holding Wo. | Amount o, I Amou
Sharen hald by holding company 2 - . =
Shares neld by Ullimate Holding Company ) . . i
Shargn hold by Subwdianes of Holding Company : - - .
Shares held by Subskdiares of Uitimate Holding Cormpany ) - - .
Shares hokd by Associates of Holding Company . . - -
Shares held by Assocutes of Ullimate Holding Company ; - - :
Total a 2 - .
Shares In ths Company held by sach sharsholder halding more than five per cent shares nnummﬂ 31 March 2024
' ] No. | % No. I %
Misdubadkiman M. Patn| 40.25,000 A40.61%, 40,29 000 A1 61 %
Atish N. Patel 28, 76.055 30.02% 20,75 065 30.02%
(Rs. in Lakhs)|
Reaerves and Surplus c MMI
. omprahensive
OTHER EQUITY Remeasure | TOTAL
Securitiea General Capital Retained mants
Pramium Reserve Reserve Earmings af Defined
Bennfit Plans
Balance al the end of the comparative reporting Period . - - (844 946) - |e44.96)
hﬁn?b;im ond of the comparative reporting Year ending 175t ~ i ) {044 90) i (844 55)
Profit far the Current Repodning year anding 31st March 2025 = 3 = (111 88) (111 88)
Dither Comprehenslve Incame for e Curment Raeporting vear ending 315 -. = _ .44 o
March 2025 : .
Tetnl Comprabanaive Incoms for the yoar - - - {111,48) - [111.48)
Transactions with owners In their capagity as ownoers:
Dividands and Drvidend Distribation Tax ] ) ;
Tranalier 1o Generyl Rusane - - - = =
Balunca at the end of the reparting year ending 31at March 2025 - - - (956.42) - (956.42)
This is the Balance Sheel referred 1o in our report of even date
For Rajani Shah & Co. Alish N, Patal Naishadkumar N, Palal
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Chairperson
Firm Reg No 121128W DIN -00084015 DIN -0008Z744
Brijesh R, Shah Dhwanl Shah Himanshu B. Bhal
Proprietor Company Secretary Chief Financlal Officer

V U Nagar, Dated 30th May, 2025




Standalone Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31st March 2025

(Rs. in Lakhs)
~ Year ended Year ended
i) stMarch2025  31st March 2024
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :
NET PROFIT BEFORE TAX (111.46) 48.60
Adjustment for :
Depreciation 7.19 6.39
Finance Cost (including fair value change in financial instruments) 2045 20.88
Interest Income 0.65 0.28
Dividend Income - -
Remeasureamenis of Defined benefil plans | - 28.59 - 27.54
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE WORKING CAPITAL CHANGES (B2.8T) 76.14
Trade receivables 56.54 (12.41)
Other Non Current Assets (4.05) 002
Other Currant Assets 26.28 (0.10)
Other Financial Assets 167 11.60
Inventories 27.04 (98.43)
Trade Payable (7.47) 110.80
Other Nan Current Liabilities 0.43 0.49
Other Current Current Liabiiities 39.04 139.48 0.35 12.61
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 56.61 88.76
Direct Taxes paid - 0.02
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 56.61 88.78
B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of Fixed Assets (22.02) (2.06)
Fixed Deposits with Banks - .
Interest Income (0.95) (0.28)
Dividend income
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (22.96) (2.34)
C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
(Repayments) | Proceads from Warking Capital Facililies (Net) (1.04) (39.14)
Increase in non-current borrowings (25.27) (12.33)
Changes in Financial Liabilities 0.22 0.10
Inferest paid (20.45) (20.88)
MNET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (46.54) (72.25)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (12.90) 14.19
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2024 23.00 8.81
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2025 10.10 23.00
Moles lo Cash Flow Stalement:
1. The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the Indirect Method.
2.Reconciliation of Financing Liabilties
31.03.2025 311.03.2024
Opening Balance 408.83 460.31
Cash inflow/ (outflow) of non-current borrowings (25.27) [12.23)
Cash inflow /{outfiow) of current borrowings (1.04) (39.14)
Closing Balance i82.52 408.83
This is the Cash Fiow Statement referred to in our report of even date
For Rajani Shah & Co. Atish N, Patal Naishadkurmar N, Patal
Chartered Accountants Managing Director Chairperson
Firm Reg.No. 121126W DIN -00084015 DIN -00082744
Hrijesh R, Shah Dhwanl Shah Himanshu B. Bhal
Proprietor Caompany Secretary Chief Financilal Officer
Mem.No. 109264 Mem, No. AZ23444

V U Nagar, Dated 30th May, 2025
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Notes to Financial statements as at 31° March 2025

Note 1-Material Accounting Policies under IND AS

A)

8)

Corporate Information

Adarsh Plant Prolect Lid. {the 'Company') was incorporated in 1992 and is a public limited company domiciled in India. lls
shares are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange ('BSE).

The Company is engaged in design and manufacturing of Sprayer Pumps, Seed Dressing Drums, MS/GI Barrels, and Biomass
Clean Cook Stoves, APPL caters to requirement of Agriculture.

Basis of preparation of financial statements

The principle accounling policies applied In the preparation of these financial statements are sel out in Para C below. These
policies have been consislently applied to all the years presented,

i. Statement of compliance

These separate financial statements (also known as Standalone Financial Statements) have been prepared in
accordance with IND AS as prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 3 of the Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and subsequent amendments therelo.

ii. Basisof preparationand presentation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis considering the applicable provisions of the
Companies Act 2013, except for the following material item that has been measured at fair value as required by relevant
Ind AS. Hislorical cost |s generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.
Fair value is the price that would be received on the sale of an assel or paid o transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.

a) Certainfinancial assets/liabllities measured at fair valuz (refer Note 29A) and
b) Anyother itemas specifically stated in the accounting policy.
The Financial Slalement is presented in INR and all values are rounded off to Rupees Lakhs unless otherwise stated.

The Company reclassifies comparative amounts, unless impracticable and whenever the Company changes the
presentation or classification of items in its financial statements materially. No such material reclassification has been
made during the year.

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31" March 2025 were approved forissue in accordance with a
resolution of the Directors in the Board Mesting held on 30" May 2025,

fil. MajorSources of Estimation Uncertainty

In the application of accounting policy which is described in note (C) below, the management is required to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses,
cantingent liabilities and the accompanying disclosures thal are nol readily apparent from olher sources. The eslimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered fo be relevant and
ara prudent and reasonable. Actual results may differ from those estimates. The estimates and underlying assumpltions
ara reviewed on arl ongoing basis. Revisions lo accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates
are revised if the revision affecls only that period or in the period of revislon and future perinds if the revision affects both
the current and future period.

The few critical estimations and judgments made in applying accounting policies are;
Property, Plant and Equipment:

Useful life of Properly, Plant and Equipment are as specified in Schedule |l to the Companies Act, 2013 in the Annual
Report 2024-25 and on carlain assets based on technical advice which considered the nature of the asset, the usage of
the assel, expected physical wear and tear, the operaling condilions of the asset, anlicipated technological changes,
manufacturers warranlies and maintenance support. The Company reviews the useful life of Property, Plant and
Equipment at the end of gach reporting period, This reassessmeant may resull in a change in depreciation charge in future
pariods.

Impairment of Non-financial Assets:

For calculating the recoverable amount of nan-financial assets, the Company is required to estimate the value in-use of
the asset or the Cash Generating Unit and the fair value less costs 1o disposal. For calculaling value In use, the Company
is required o estimale the cash llows to be generated from using the asset. The fair value of an assel s estimated using a
valuation technique where observable prices are not available. Further, the discount rate used in valug in use calculations
includes an astimate of risk assessment specificto the asset.

Impairment of Financial Assets:

The Company impairs financial assets other than those measured al fair value through profit or loss or designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income on expecled credit losses. The estimation of expected credit loss includes the
estimation of the probability of default (PD}, loss given defaull (LGD) and the exposure at default (EAD). Estimation of
probabllity of default apart from involving trend analysis of past delinquency rates includes estimalion on forward-looking
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information relating lo not only the counter party but aiso relating o the induslry and the economy as a whole. The
probabllity of defaull is estimated for the entire life of the contract by estimating the cash flows that are likely to be received
in default scenario. Further, the loss given default is calculated based on an estimate of the value of the security
recoverable as on the reporting date. The exposure at default is the amount oulstanding at the balance sheet dale.

Defined Benefit Plans ;

The cost of the defined benefit plan and the present value of such obligations are determined using actuarial valuations.
Anactuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases, morlality rates and attrition rate. Due to the
complexities invalved in the valuation and its long-termnature, & defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive lo changesin
these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. (Reler Note 23F)

Fair Value Measurement of Financial Instruments:

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recarded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based
on quoted prices in active markels, their fair value is measured using valuation lechniques including the Discounted Cash
Flow (DCF) model. The inputs to these models are taken rom observable markets where possible, but where this Is nel
feasible, a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values.

Income taxes:

Significant judgments are involved in determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected 1o be paid/
recavered for uncertain lax posilions.

In assessing the realizability of deferred income lax assels, managemen! considers whether some portion or all the
deferred income ax asseats will nol be realized, The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon
the generation of fulure taxable income during the periods in which the temparary differences become deductible.
Management considers the scheduled reversals of defarred income tax liabilities, projected future laxable income and tax
planning strategies in making this assessment. Basad on the level of historical laxable income and projections for future
laxable income over the periods In which the deferred income lax assels are deductible, management believes that the
Company will realize the benefits of those deductible differences.

The amount of the deferred income tax assels considered realizable, however, could be reduced in he near term if
estimates of future taxable income during the carry forward period are reduced.

Leases:

Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease adjusted with any option
to extend or terminate the lease, if the use of such option is reasonably certain. The Company makes an assessment on
the expecled lease term on a lease-by-lease basis and thereby assesses whether it is reasonably certain that any oplions
to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised. In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as
any significant leasehold improvements undertaken over the lease term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and
Ihe importance of the underlying assel lo Company's operations Laking into account the location of the underlying assel
and the availabllity of sultable alternatives, The lease term in future perlods is reassessed lo ensure that the lease term
reflects the currenl economic circumstances. After considering current and fulure economic conditions, the Company has
cancluded thal no changes are required lo lease period relating lo the existing lease contracts.

Allowance for credit losses on receivables:

The Company delermines the allowance for credil losses based on historical loss experience adjusted to reflec current
and estimatad future aconomic conditions. The Company considerad current and anticipated future economic conditions
relating to industries the Company deals with and the countries where it operates, In calculating expected credit loss, the
Company has also considered credit reports and other related credit information for ils customers to estimate the
prabability of default in future.

C) Summary of Material Accounting Policies:

Ind AS 1 was amended vide notification no G.5.R.242(E) dated 31st March 2023 o require disclosure of Material Accounting
Policy information from accounting pericds beginning on or after 1 April 2023 instaad of significant accounting policy disclosure
by amending paragraph 117, inserting paragraphs 117Ato 117E and deleting paragraphs 118 10 121, Paragraph 117 of Ind AS
1 states when an information on accounting policy is considered as 'Malerial Accounting Palicy information’ as follows:

Accounting policy information is material if, when considered together with other information included in an entity's financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general-purpose financial
statements make on the basis of those financial statements.

Each of the policy disclosed herein below has been lested to determine whether the information disclosed is Material
Accounting Policy information.

1) Property, Plantand Equipment (PPE)

The Campany has elected to continue with the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment ('PPE’) recognized as of
the transition date, measured as per (he Previous GAAP and use thal carrying value as its deemed cosl.
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Properly, Plant and Equipment are stated al cosl less accumulated deprecialion and accumulaled impairment losses
axcept for freehold land which Is notamortised.

Any gain or loss ansing on derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment Is determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assel and is recognized in Profit or Loss aggregated
wilh olher income or olher expense line item on net basis, respectively.

The depreciable amount of an assel Is determined after deducting its residual value. Depreciation on the property, plant
and equipment, s calculated using the straight-line method over the useful life of assets based on management estimates
which is in line with the useful life indicated in Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013, Given below are the estimaled
useful lives for each class of property, plant and equipment;

Description of the Asset Estimated Useful Life
Tangible:

Bullding -~ Faclory 30 Years
Plant and Equipment 5-20 Years
Furniture and Fixtures 10 Years
Compulers And Server 3 Years
Office Equipment 5 Years
Other Assets, viz., A.C. And Ele. Installations 5-10 Years
Vehicles B-10 Years
intangible:

Software 5 Years

2] Intangible Assets:

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on inilial recognition al cost. After initlal recognition, intangible assets
are carried al cost less any actumulated amorization and accumulated impairment losses.

Soflware (nol being an integral part of the related hardware) and Technical Know How acquired for internal use are treated
asintangible assets.

Any gain or loss arnising from deracognition of an intanglble asset is determined as the difference between the nel disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in profit or loss with other income or other expanse line
item on nel basis, respectively.

Intangible Assets are amortized over 3 to 10 years on straight-line method over the estimated useful economic life of the
assels.

3} Investment Property:

Investment properties are land and buildings that are held for long lerm lease rental yields and/ or for capital appreciation,
Investment properties are intially recognized al cost including transaction cosls. Subsequently, investment properties
comprising bullding are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, ifany,

Depreciation on Factory Building is provided over the estimated useful lives as specified in note 1 above,

The difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the assat is recognized in profit or loss in the
period of de-recognition.

4) Inventories:

Inventories consisting of stores and spares, raw materials, work in progress, and finished goods are measured at lower of
cost and net realizable value. However, materials held for use in production of inventones are not written down below cost,
Iif the linished products are expacted lo be sold at or above cosL

Castof raw matenal, components and slores and spares is determinad on a first in firsl out basis,

Cost of Work-in-progress and finished goods are includes direct materials and labour and a proportion of manufacturing
overheads based on normal operating capacity.

5) Leases:
The Company as a lessee

The Company's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and building. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains alease, atinception of a contract.

Al the dale of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use assel ("ROU) and a corresponding
lease liability for all lease arrangementsin which il is a lesses, excepl for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-
term leases) and low value leases. For these shor-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease
payments as an operaling expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.
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The lease lerm includes extension or termination aptions when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The night-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses.

Righl-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the sharter of the lease
termand useful life of the underlying asset.

The lease liability is initially measured al the present value of the fulure lease payments. The lease paymenis are
discounted using the interest rate implicitin the lease or, if not readlly determinable, using the Incremental borrowing rates.
Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use asset if the Comipany charges
s assessment of whether it will exercise an extension or a termination oplian.

6) GovernmentGrants:

Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that (|} the Company will
comply with the conditions attached 1o them, and (i) the grant/subsidy will be received.

Where the grant relates to an asset under the EPCG Scheme, it is presented as a deferred income aggregated under other
liahilities In the Balance Sheel and presented under olher income in profit and loss on a systematic and rational basis
associated with fulfillment of export obligation.

7) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets:

Provisions are recognized when there is a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is
prababie thal an outflow of resources embodying aconomic benefits will be required lo settia the obligation and a reliable
eslimale can be made of the amaunt of the abligation,

Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of management/ independent experts. These are reviewed at
each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect the current management estimate.

Provisions for warranty-related costs are recognized when the product is sold to the customer. Initial recognition is based
onscientific basis as per pasttrends of such claims. The initial estimate of warranty-related costs is revised anriually.

B) Foreign Currency Transactions:

The financial statements of the Company are presented In INR, which is also the funclional currency (l.e., the cumency of
the primary economic environment in which the Company operates). In preparing the financial statements. transactions in
currencies other than the entity's functional currency are recognized at the rales of exchange prevailing atthe dates of the
transactions. Al the end of each reporiing period, monetary items denominated in forelgn currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency are reported at the exchange rate ruling
on the date of transaction.

8) CashFlows and Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Statement of cash flows Is prepared in accordance with the indirect method preseribed in the relevant IND AS. For the
purpose of presentation in the slatement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand, cheques and
drafts on hand, deposits hald with Banks with original maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to
known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. However, Bank overdrafts are to
be shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet for the purpose of presenlation.

10) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue lowards satisfaction of a performance obligation is measured at the amoun!t of transaclion price allocated lo thal
performance obligation. The transaction price of goods sold and services rendered is net of vanable consideration on
account of delayed delivery of goods! product discounts and schemes offerad by thie company as part of the contract with
the cuslomers. The Company recognises changes in the estimated amounts of obligations for discounts in the period in
which the change occurs. Revenue also excludes taxes collected from customers.

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the revenue
can be reliably measured, regardless of when payment Is being made.

Revenue from conltract with customers is recognized upon lransfer of control of promised products or services lo
custamers in an amount thal reflects the consideration the Company expects o recsive In exchange for thoss praducts or
services.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in ime when control is transferred to the customer.
Revenue from sale of services is recognised when the activity is performed.

Revenue in excess of invoicing are classified as contract assets while invoicing in excess of revenues are classified as
contract liabilities.

11) Employee Benefils:
a) Shortterm Employee Benefits:

All employee benefils payable wholly within twelve months of rendering services are classified as shon-term
employee banefits. Benefits such as salanes, wages, short-term compensated absences, perfarmance incentives
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elc.,, are recognized during the period in which the employee renders relaled services and are measured al
undiscounted amount expected to be pald when the liabilities are settied,

b) Long-Term Employee Benefits:

The cost of praviding long-lerm employee benefit such as eamed leave is measured as the present value of expected
fulure paymenis to be made in respecl of services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period. The
expected costs of the benefil is accrued over the period of employment using the same methodology as used for
defined benefits post employment plans. Actuarial gains and losses arising from the experience adjusiments and
changes in acluarial assumplions are charged or cradited to profit or loss section of the Statement of Profitor Loss in
the pariod in which they arise except those included in cost of assets as permitted, The benefil is measured annually
by Independent actuary.

c) Post-Employment Benefits:
The Company provides the following post employment benefits:
i) Defined benefitplani.e., gratuity
i) Defined contributions plani.e., providentfund,

d) Defined benefits Plans:

The cost of providing benefits on account of gratuity obligations |s determined using the projected unit credit methed
on the basis of acluarial valuation made at the end of each balance sheet date.

Re-measurements comprising of actuanal gains and losses arising from expenence adjustments and change in
actuarial assumptions, the effect of change in assets cailing (if applicable) and the return on plan asse! (excluding nel
interest as defined above) are recognized in other comprehensive income (OC1) excent those included in cost of
assets as permitted in the period in which they occur. Re-measurements are nol reclassified to the Statement of Profit
and Loss insubsequent periods.

e} Defined Contribution Plans

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefil plans, viz., Provident Fund are recognized as an expense when
employees have rendered the service entitling them to the contribution,

12) Taxes onIncome:

Income tax expense represents the sum of income tax currently payable and deferred tax. Tax is recognized in the profit or
loss section of the Slatement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent thal it relates to iterns recognized directly in equity orin
other camprehensive income

a) Current Tax:

Current tax is the expected tax payable/ recelvable on the taxable income/ loss for the year using applicable tax rates
for the relevant peried, and any adjustment to taxes in respect of previous years. Tax on Income for the current year is
determined on the basis of estimaled taxabie income and tax credits computed in accordance with the provisions of
the refevant tax laws and based on the expecled oulcome of assessments/ appeals.

b) Deferred Tax:

Deferred tax is recognized on temparary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities In the
balance sheet and the corresponding tax bases used in the compulation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are
recoghized for all laxable temporary differences. Deferrad lax assets are recognized for all tax deductible temporary
differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed depreciation to the extent that itis probable that future taxable profits
will be avallable against which these deductible temporary differences, unabsorbed losses and unabsorbed
depreciation can be utilized.

13) Eamnings per Share:

Basic earnings per share are calculaied by dividing the lotal profil attributable 1o equity shareholders of the Company by
the weighted average number of equities shares outstanding during the year. Basic earnings per share are calculated
separately for bath continuing and discontinuing operations,

14) Financial Instruments:
a) Financial Assets

A financial asset inler-alia includes any asset that Is cash, equity instrument of anather entity or contractual rights to
recaive cash or another financial assel or lo exchange financial assat or financial liability under condition thal are
potentially favorable to the Company.

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assels are recognised mitially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets nol recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial assel. However, Trade
recelvables that do not contain a significant financing component are measured at Transaction Price. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profitor loss are expensed in Profit or Loss.
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Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement financial assels are classified in three calegories:
Financial assels measurad at amoriized cost

Financial assals al fair value through OCI

Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assels are measured at amoriized cosl il lhe financials asset is held within a business model whose
objective is fo hold financial assets in order lo collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the financial
asset give rige on specified dales to cash flows thal are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding. These financials assels are amortized using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less
impalrment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an inlegral parl of the EIR, The EIR amortization Is included in finance income in the statement of profit
orloss.

Financial assets at fair value through OCI (FVTOCI)

Financial assets are mandatorily measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if the financial assel is
held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates o cash flows that are
solely payments of pnncipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. At initial recognition, an irrevocable
election is made (on an instrument-by instrument basis) to designate Investments in equity instruments ather than
held for trading purpese al FVTOC!, Fair value changes are racognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). On
derecognition of the financial asset other than equity mstruments, cumulative gain or loss previously recegnized in
OClis reclassified to Profit or Loss.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss{FVTPL)

Any financial asset that does not meet the criteria for classification as at amortized cost or as financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income, Is classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss.

Derecognition

The Company derecognizes a financial assel only when the contractual rights to the cash fiows from the assel expire,
orwhen it ransfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assel to another
entity.

Impairment of financial assets
The Company assesses impairment based on expected credit loss (ECL) model on the following:
»  Financial assets that are measured at amortized cost.

»  Financial assets (excluding equity instruments) measured at fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVTOCI).

» ECL is measured through a loss allowance on a following basis aller considering the value of recoverable
Security:

»  The 12 month expected credil losses (expected credit losses that result from those default events on the financial
instruments that are possible within 12 menths after the rapmﬂn_g date).

»  Fulllife lime expected credit losses (expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the [ife
af financial Instrumants).

The Company follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment on trade recelvables or contract assels
resulting from normal business transactions. It recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifelime ECLs at each
reporting date, from the date of initial recognition,

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assels, the Company determines whether there has been a
significant Increase in the credit risk since initial recognition, If credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
provided. For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company assesses the credit risk
characleristics on instrumenl-by-instrumenl basis.

The Company recognizes thal cerlain accounts receivable may ultimately become uncollectible. In accordance with
the Direct Wrile-Off Method, bad debts are recognized as an expanse anly when specific accounls are determined to
be uncollectible, This method is used for simplicity and when bad debts are infrequent orimmaterial,

Impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as expense/income in profit or
loss,

During the financial year, the Company has wrilten offl certain lrade receivables which were assessed as
irecoverable.
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The write-off has been accounted for using the Direct Write-Off Method. and no separate allowance for doubtful debts
has been crealed. The total amount written off during thee year is as under:

Particulars Amount Rs.
Trade receivables written off 89,90, 111/-
Advances writlen off 28.62 550/~

The amount has been recognized as an expense in the Statement of Profitand Loss.

Whiting of Trade Receivable of Bad debts are deductible for tax purposes only when they are specifically written off in
accordance wilh lax requlations. For the year ended 31/03/2025, bad debls of Rs.89,90,111/- were wrillen off as Bad
Debls and has been considered in the computation of current tax expenses for the year. A currenl tax benefit of
22,47.528/- (based on applicable tax rate @ 25%) has been recognized, as these bad debts qualify for deduction
under the Income-taxAct, 1961.

b) Financial Liabilities

The Company's financial liabilities Include loans and borrowings, trade payable, accrued expenses and other
payables,

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial liabilities at initial recognition are classified as financial liabllities at amortized cost or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss, as appropriate. All tinancial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs,

Financial Liabilities classified as Amortised Cost:

All Financial Liabiiities other than derivatives are measured al amorlised cost at the end of subsequent accounting
penods. Interest expense that is not capitalised as part of costs of assets is included as Finance costs in Profil or Loss.

Derecognition

Afinancial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged / cancelled / expired. When an
existing financial liability Is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially differant terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or madification Is treated as the de recognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in
of profitor loss.

15) Segment Reporting:

The Company identifies segments as operating segments whose operating resulls are regularly reviewed by the
Management o make decisions aboul resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its perdormance and for
which discrete financial information is available. The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the
accounting policies of the Company. Segmenl assels include all operating assets used by the business segments and
consist of property plamt and equipment, intangible assets, debtors and inventories. Segment liabilities include the
operating hahilities that result from operating activities of the business segment. Assets and Liabilities that cannot be
allocated between the segments are shown as part of unallocaled corporate assets and liabilities, respectively. Income/
Expenses relating to the enterprise as a whole and not allocable on a reasonable basis lo business segments are
reflected as unallocated corporate income / expenses.

16) RecentAccounting Pronouncements:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ('MCA') notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. For the year ended 31" March, 2025, MCA has not
notified any new standards or amendments (o the existing slandards applicable to the Company.
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Note 2 (a). Property, Plant and Equipment (Rs. in Lakhs)
. Plant and Electrical Fumniture Office Alr
Fartkirs Bulldings | oquipment | Instaiiation | and ficures | equipment ‘ Conpulery ‘ Vehicles | conditioners | 1018
Gross Block
Al cost as at 31 March 2024 4,50 40.74 523 764 6.47 1.45 20.08 041 86.50
Addiions 12,70 - (.23 9.00 2202
Dispasals . - - .
At cost as at 31 March 2025 4,50 5353 523 7.64 6.47 166 2008 041 10852
Depreciation Block
Accumulated depreciation |
Amortisation as at the 31 March 2024 {1.88 1746 97 279 35 1.3 .30 044 KT
Dapreciation { Amorfisation for the year 018 2,58 0.23 049 0.62 0.04 25 7.19
Disposals . .
Net Block
As at 315t March 2024 382 2328 1.26 485 293 0.20 12.78 (0.03) 45,89
As at 31st March 2025 44 3338 1.02 3595 2N 0.39 19.24 (0.03) 6372
Note 2 {b). Capital Work-in-Progress
As at 31 March 2024 5.60
As at 31 March 202§ 5,60
Note 3 |
Trade Receivables (Rs. in Lakhs)
Non-Current Currant
Particulars ~ Asat As at Asat Asat
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Trade raceivables
Mot Dusa - 20385 230.96
Lass Than & Months - 67.15 36,72
f Months-1 Year - 5.09 14.78
1-2 Year - = z =
2-3 Years - - ;
Mcre than 3 Years - - 50.27
Total - - 27620 332.74
Mole: Managemeanl is of the opinion thal the amount of long over due |s callectible and therafore no Impairmen| provision Is provided.
Note 4
Financial Assets-Loans (Rs. in Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024

\Unsecured, Considered Good
Security Deposits

Total
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Note 5
Other Financial Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Depasits with mare than 12 months maturily 26.85 22.91 - -
Others :
Balanice with Govt. Authority ; : 1.80 5.70
Interest Accrued on Loans and Deposits.Loans to Employeas - - 8.01 877
Total 26.95 29 8.81 11.47
Note 6
Other Assets (Rs. in Lakhs)
Nan-Current Current
Particulars Asat Asat Asat  Asat
31 March 2025 |31 March 2024 | 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Capital Advances - - - 3ar
Advances other than capital advancis - - . -
Advances o suppliers - - 2,68 28.45
Sub Total . - 268 .
Others :
Prepaid Expanses - - 7.80 4.83
Sub Total - - 7.80 4.83
Tﬁﬂ ™ - TBH H-‘E’E !
Note: Management is of the opinion that the amaunt of long over due is collectible and therefore no Impairment provision is provided,
Mote 7
Inventories (Rs. In Lakhs)
Asal Asat
Fartipuiers 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Raw Matarials 91.23 8027
Work-in-progress 221.40 278.19
Finished goods 9.73 23.40
Stores and sparas 64.97 31.51
Total 387.34 41437
Note 8
Cash and Cash Equivalents{ as per Cash Flow Statement) (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at As al
Particulars 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Balances with Banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalants) 0.85 14.99
Cash on hand 8.45 8.0
Total 10.10 23.00
Mote 9
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cash Equivalents (Rs. in Lakhs)
: As at As at
Particulers 31 March 2025 31 March 2024

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months

Total




Notes to Financial statements as at 31" March 2025

Note 10
Borrowings (Rs. in Lakhs)
. As at As at
RarBcuiaes 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
NON CURRENT
Secured - 3.08
Unsecured 242 81 265.00
Deposit
- from Others - -
Sub - Total 242.81 268.08
CURRENT _ )
Secured
Loans repayable on demand
- from banks 181.69 180.42
Unsecured
- from Others - 2.3
Sub - Total 181.69 182.73
Total 424.50 450.82
Nature of Borrowings :;t::;:aﬁie And Terms Of

Loans repayable on demand

working capital loan from the Vallabh Vidyanagar Commercial Co -
operative Bank Lid. is secured by hypothecation of entire Raw material ,
stock in - process, stores & spares, packing materials, finished goods and
book-debts of the company, both present & future.

It is further guaranted by M/s Nas Packaging Pvt. Ltd &
Mr. Naishadkumar N, Patel & Atish N.Patel, Directors of Company.

Further secured by equitable mortage of leasehold factory land & building

1.00 % above (MCLR +SP)
I.e.7.758% p.a. at present monthly
rests.

Unsecured Loan From Others is from Directors

Nil rate of interest & No Security

Provided
Note 11
Trade Payables (Rs. In Lakhs)
Non-Current Currant
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Not Due 123.23 238.67
Less Than 6 Months 109.89 1.92
6 Months-1 Year . .
1-2 Year .
2-3 Years .
More than 3 Years : 5
Total - 23312 24059
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Note 12
Dther Financial Liabilities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
Particulars As at ~ Asat ~ Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Others .
Security Deposit - 1.08 0.87
Advance from Customer : -
Total - . 1.08 0.87
Note 13

Deferred Tax Liabilities - (Net)

The Company has not recognised the Deferred Tax Assels as carried forward losses are significant and shall recognise the Delfe med Tax Assals

in succaeding years when fhere is sufficient taxable income.

Note 14

Other Liabiiities (Rs. in Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
Particulars As at As at As at As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Statutory Dues - . 1.99 231
Employee benefils 3.60 317 £.19 7.81
Liabilities for expenses - : B6.69 45.71
Total 3.60 317 89487 55.83
Note 14 (A)
Provisions (Rs. in Lakhs)
Non-Current Current
Particulars As at As at Asat As at
31 March 2025 31 March 2024 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Provisions = 1.02 1.02
Total 1.02 1.02
Note 15
Revenue from Operations (Rs. in Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Faricuiars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Sale Of Products 1737.12 1,850.09
Sale Of Services, and 11.42 8.27
Other Operating Revenues 1.16 6.54
Total 1,749.70 1,864.90
Note 16
Other Income (Rs. in Lakhs)
Year Ended Year Ended
Rariculars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Interest Income 072 0.14
Dividend Income 0.01 0.01
Miscellaneous Income 0.22 0.12
Total 0.95 0.28
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Note 17
Cost of Materials consumed (Rs. In Lakhs)
pariowars J :;E:dzﬁs Jﬁﬂ%
Opening Stock of Raw Materials 11.78 186.01
Other Adjustments - -
Purchases during the year 1,298.97 1,535.11
Freight on Purchase of Barrels 0.02
Less: Closing Stock of Raw Materials 156.20 111.78
Total 1,254.55 1,609.36
Note 18
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Work-in-Progress and Stock-in-Trade (Rs. in Lakhs)
Tatiaa Ml mon | otk oo
Closing Stock:
Finished Goods 9.73 23.40
Work-in-Progress 221.40 279.19
231.14 302.59
Less: Opening Stock:
Finished Goods 23.40 1.57
Work-in-Progress 279.189 118.36
302,59 129.93
Total 71.46 (172.66)
Note 19
Employee Benefits Expense (Rs. in Lakhs)
Paricuars HMarch2025 | 1 March 2024
Salaries and Wages 86.97 80.50
Contribution to provident, gratuity and other funds 1.60 1.20
Staff welfare expenses 3.68 4.03
Total 92.24 85.73
Note 20
Finance Costs (Rs. in Lakhs)
| Year End Year
Farhculars. viscsios | oo dagk
Interest on Loans and Deposils 0.05 0.83
Interest on Working Capital Facilities 18.84 20.05
Other Borrowing Costs .
Bill Discounting Charges 1.56 -
Total 20.45 20.88
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Note 21

Other Expenses (Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulars 31 parc 3028 | |31 Macch20gs
Stores and Spares Consumed 23.57 2576
Power and Fuel 24 58 23.92
Processing Expanses 36.94 29.47
Rent 38,60 43.60
Other Mfg. Exp. 15.34 13.14
Auditors’ Remuneration:
As Auditors 0.75 0.87
Bad Debts written-off 89.90 -
Commission - 0.63
Freight and Forwarding (Net) 5.80 11.51
Other Expenses 180.20 127.97
Total 416.65 266.87
Note 22
FairValues and Hierarchy

1. Financial instruments - Fair values

A.Accounting classification and fair values
The following lable shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial llabllities, including thelr levels are
presented below . It does not include the fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured al fair value if
Iheir carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Carrying amount Fair value |
1 Morch 2028 Mo | AP P0G AnosedCot  Tol acivemanss m# sl Total
(Level 1} [Lavel 2] {Level 3)
Einancidl sssels
Trade Risooivablss 3 : 21520 2620 : A 27620 27620
Offters financial assets 5 1876 3578 ; - %7 4676
Cash ant cash Uty 8 : 10.10 1010 . : 10.10 10,10
Bk balances alhar than abovs gl - . . . . . : :
Total : . 2316 32306 . . 323,06 33,06
Funanca lishilias
Bortowings 0o - . 42430 4450 - 42450 . 424,50
Trade Pryables w| - ; 312 23312 . . 21342 23312
Omer Firancal Liadilbes 2| - : 1,08 118 : : 108 1.0
Total . . RE8.TY 85871 . 42450 £34.20 G58.71
Camying amount Fair value
S Marsts 2aY No. | FVTPL  FVIOCI  Amortised Cost Tolsl WM" cbservable inputs "W' Total
(Ll 1) [Level 2] (Leval 3)
Fingncal 2555
Trada Recanahios 3 - TR 32N - - Raval ] 33204
Laans 4 - - - - - . -
Ofhere fineincial 2ssets 5 2067 67 : . 267 2867
Cash and cash auivalents 8 - 200 2300 27100 2400
Bank balances olhar than ahove B , - - - - - -
Total 3 : 8441 38441 . - 441 184,41
Financsl Gabilibes
Rormowings 0| - ; 15082 45089 = 45087 : 45087
Trade Payabies w| - : 4050 24050 : : 050 24050
O Firircad Liatiias 2l - : 07 0$7 . . 0F 087
Total . : w9227 w9221 : a8 241,45 68227




Notes to Financial statements as at 31° March 2025

B. Measurement of fair values
Valuation technigues and significant uncbservable inputs

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, rade receivables, trade payables, bank overdrafts and other current
liabllities approximale their carrying amounts largely due Lo the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Fair Value of financial assels included is the amount al which the instrument could be exchanged in a currenl lransaction belween
willing parties. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the falr value.

1.
2.

The Fair values of Mutual Funds and Quoted Equities are based on NAV / Quoted Price at the reporting date.

Non current financial assets / liabllities measured at amortised cost - Discounted cash flow technique . The valuation model
considers presenl value of expecled payments discounted using an appropriale discounting rate.

Non cumment financial assets / liabilities measured at amortised cost - Discounted cash flow technique : The valuation model
considers prasent value of expected payments discounted using an appropriate discounting rate., Except balance with Karamsad
Co-Op Bank as itis in the liguidation no method is avallable to derive the value hence stated at Cost.

NOTE 23
Additional/ Explanatory Statements

a) Earnings Per Share

Partictilars For the year ended | For the year ended
31-March-2025 31-March-2024
Profit/Loss after taxation Rs. in Lakhs (111.89) 48.60
Number of equity shares {Face Value Rs.10/-) Nos. 99,11,500 89,11,500
Earnings per share In Rupees (1.13) 0.49

b) The Company's leasing arrangements are in respect of operating leases for factory and office permises. The leasing

d)

arrangements, which are not non-cancellable, are for one year generally, and are usually renewable by mutual
consent on agreed terms. The aggregate lease rentals payable are charged as rent.

Disclosures under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ('MSMED'):

The details of liabilities to Micro and Small Enterprises, to the extent information available with the Company are
given under:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
Particulers 31-March-2025 | 31-March-2024

(i} Principal amounts remaining unpaid to suppliers as at the end of the accounting year . .

Dues lo MSME has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
certified by the management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.

There are no transactions with single external customer which amounts to 10% or more of the Company's revenue,
therefore segment reporting is not required.




Notes to Financial statements as at 31° March 2025

NOTE 23

Additional! Explanatory Statements

e) Related party disclosures ( As per Ind AS 24: Related Party Disclosures) :
(a) Names of related pariies and nature of relatonship whera control exists are as under;
(b}  Names of oiher miated paries and nature of relationship:

Holding Company
Key Managament Parsannel: I} Mr Atish Patel (Managing Director)
i) Mr. Himanshu Bhoi {Chief Financial Officar) (wef 01.12.24)
i) Ms. Dhwani Shah (Company Secretary) (wef 01.04.24)
ivl  Mrs. Ami Mehta (Company Secretary) (01.04.23 to 11.07 23)
v} Wr. Ashok Padhiyar (Chief Financial Officar) (01.04.24 to 30.11.24)
Non-Exeoutive/ Indepandant Directars of i) Mr. Naishad Patal
the Company i) Mrs. Jyotika Patel
i) Mr. Arvind Shah (01.04.24 to 14,09.24)
v} NirBipin Thakkar
v]  Mr. Vipul Raval
vi)  Mr. Chandrashekhar Trivedi (waf 14.09.24)
Relatives of Key Management Personnal: i) Mr Naishad Patel (Father of Managing Director)
I} Mrs Jyotika Patal (Mother of Managing Direclor)
Companies in which KMPs/ Directars are i) Nippon Appliances Private Limited
inferasted: i) Mini Sarvodyog Sira
Companies in which Relativas of i) NAS Packaging Private Limited
Directors are interested; )  Adarsh Plant Private Limited
{c) Transactions with related parties (excluding reimbursements)
Nature of Transactions
(Rs. in Lakhs)
. ~|__Outstanding Payable/{Receivatio)
Particulars YoarEnded - YearEnded | VearEnded  YearEnded
— e _ 3Mer25  3Mer2d4 | 31Mar25 31-Mar-24
! Kay Mansnsnal Parsonnel
Loan Recsived - -
s Paeid )
Atiuty Patol Deposit . . 0.50 (.60
Atlsh Patol Royaity Foes 18,76 18,78 17,08
Meat Loan Rocaned iPawg . - - -
Irlerent Faid - - = =
Ramunarabion o KMPs
Al Melhita - 1.10. -
Axhik Padiilyar 234 295 -
Himanakiu Bt 152 - 0,04
Chmwant Shah 4240 - (18 L
" . .
Loan Recalvad . -
Inlerent Paid
Nalshadkumar M. Batel 335,80 28.00 FRENY 200 41
Mat Loan Becerwad /Paid - = - -
Interest Pald 3 - - 3
Sitting Fana
Jyoliiiabien N Palnl 0.5 020 e
i)
Wil Sarvodyoog Sia Purchaoo 67 63 78.51 =
Sale ol Goods!Sarvices '
Mini Sarvodyoeg Sira Sales 10.00 818 548 14.94
Rant pabd
Nas Packaging P L 05 34 53.28 47 43 1660
W) | Bitting fosa to Chroctoms .
Vipul Raval 0.25 0.20
Bipin Thakkas .25 0.20
Arvind V. Shah 0,15 010 -
Chandrmshakhar Trived) 0.10 = =

*The figures are regrouped and re-arranged whereever considered necessary.

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with retaled parties
The transactions with refated parties are made on terms equivalent fo those that prevail in am's length transactions. Outstanding balances at the
year-and are unzecured and Interest free and setllement occurs in cash, There have baen no guaraniees provided or recelved for any related
party receivables or payables. For the year ended 31" March 2025, the Company has not recorded any impairment of recelvables relating to
amounts owed by related parfies. This assessmeant [s undertakan 2ach financial year through examining the financial position of the related party
and the marketin which the related party oparates,

\ =



Notes to Financial statements as at 31° March 2025

NOTE 23
Additional/ Explanatory Statements

f)  Disclosures as per IND AS - 19 - Employee Benefits

1} During the year / period, the company has recognised the following amounts in the Statement of Profit and Loss:

(Rs. In Lakhs)
Year Ended | Year Ended
Furtiodlas 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
1) Emplover's contribution to Provident Fund 0,64 (.55
Inchuded in * Contribution to Provident and other Funds® (Note 19),
W | Defined benefit shligation:
u) The valuation results for the defined banefit graturty plan as at 31 32025 are produced in the 1ahles below:
i) Changes in the Present Value of Obligation (Rs. in Lakhs)
o Yearnded | Year Ginded
Fthedin 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning 261 287
(urrent Service Uost .61 01.538
Interest Expense or Cost 0.13 D22
Re-measurement (or Actuarial) (gain)  loes arising from: s s
- change 1o financial assumptions .12 0.06
-+ e ko change in demographic hssumption . .
- experienes virtnee (e, Avtunl experlence v8 assumptions) {0.56) 0.42)
Benefits Puid - ((1.61)
Present Value of Obligation ns at the end 297 2.61
ii) Changes in the Fair Value of Plan Assets (Rs. In Lakhs)
: YearEnded | YearEnded
i 31 March 2035 | 81 March 2024
Fair Value of Plan Assets as ot the beginning
Investmont [neame
Adjustment to opening Fair Value of Plan Asset .
Return on Plan Asssts excluding interest income s
Emplover's Contribution
Benefits Paid
Fair Value of Plan Assets as at the end - -
iii) Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement (Rs. In Lakhs)
: Year Ended Year Ended
SEERES 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Curront Servies Cost .61 039
Nt Interest Cost | (Invome) on the Net Defined Benefit Linhility | (Aseet) 0,18 0.22
Expenses Recognised in the Income Statement (.80 0.1
iv) Other Comprehensive lncome (Rs. in Lakhs)
Yeur Ended Yeur Ended
| Faiticsdons 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
Artuurinl (gains) | lnsses
- change in finanoal assumptions 0.12 0,06
- experience variance {i.e. Actual experience vs assumptions| (0.5f) (0:42)
Adjustment of prosent value of oligation at the beginning of the year . .
Heturn on Plan Assets exeluding interest meoine
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other
comprehensive income (0.44) (0,36}

R




Notes to Financial statements as at 31° March 2025

NOTE 23
Additional/ Explanatory Statements

v) Major categories of Plan Assets (as percentage of Tolal Plan Assets)

Yoar Ended Year Endod
| Petsiies 31 March 2025 | 31 March 202
i Funds managad by Insurer 0.00% 0.00%
vi) Actuarial Assumptions
2. Financial Assumptions
Tha nﬁu:i:ﬂ-‘fumﬁd_dmumpﬁurﬁﬂ used in the valuation ore shown in fhe fmtrhe below:
Pasticuics 3 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Disoount rate (per anim) A.75% 7.45%
Salary growih rate (per annum) 7.00% 7.00%
b. Demographic Assumplions
Puticuiars 31 March 2025 | 31 March 2024
Moriality Rate (% of IALM 06-0%) 100% 100%
Withdrawal rates, based an age. (per annum)
(25 yoars 10.00% 10.00%
J6-15 years B O0% B.00%
36-45 years 5.00% 6 00%
4655 years 4 00% 4.00%
56 & above 2 00% 2.00%

vii) Amount, Timing and Uncertainty of Future Cash Flows
a. Sensltivity Analysis _ _ ) o
Slgnilleant actuarial assumpbons lor the daterminalion of the delined benglll obligation are discount rals, 2xpectad salaty Increase angd monally The sensiiity

analysis below have been detarmined based on ressonably possible changss of The ossumptions occurring a8 the ond of the repor fing perod, while holding ll ot
assumplicns constanl. The resulls of sensliivity analysls s glven below:

(Rs. in Lakhs)
. Year Ended Year Ended
Fartiuse 31 March 2025 31 March 2024
| Defined Benelit Cbligation {Basa) 2407 261
| Yaar Endod Year Endod
Particulars HH‘nhmﬁ ™ .ﬂummn
Decrease  Increase |  Decroase Increase

Discount Rate (- | + 0.5%) in 4.2 274 249
|% change comparsd to bases due to sensdiily) 4.76%  445% 4.93% <4 5%
Satary Growtn Rate (- [ = 0.5%} 183 in 248G 27
(% charon compared |o mEes du to semsiinty) -4 46% 4. T2% 462% 40%
Withdrawal Rate (- 1 = 10%) 297 PR 261 2680
(% changs compared 1o base dus to sensitivily) 015% -0 1% 0.15% 0.14%

Please note that the sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change In the defined benefit
obligation as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may
be correlated.

There Is no change in the method of valuation for the prior period. For change in assumptions please refer to section 5 above,
where assumplions for prior period, if applicable, are given.

b. Asset Liability Matching Strategies

The schame is managed on funded basis,

c, Effect of Plan on Entity’s Future Cash Flows

-Funding arrangements and Funding Policy

Looking to the small value, the Company does not fund amountinany schemes.

-Expected Contribution during the next annual reporting period (Rs. in Lakhs)

The Company's best estimate of Contribution during the next year -
- Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligation

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cash flows)

-Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
1year

2 o5 years -
6lo 10 years

(Rs. in Lakhs)

(Rs. in Lakhs)

\ =



Notes to Financial statements as at 31" March 2025

NOTE 23
Additional/ Explanatory Statements
(G) Ratio Analysis
_ As at March 31st %
Particulars Numerator Denominator 2025 2024 Varlancss Reason for Variance
Current Ratio Current Asset Current Liabilities 1.36 1.71 0.10
Debt-Equity Ratio | Total Deb Eg‘;ﬁhm 1222 308 11.97
- Earnings
Debt Service .
' available for debt | Debt Service (4.12) 3.63 (3.24)
Coverage Ratio saruina
; Net profit after Average incremental decrease
{R;g‘;] on EQUIY | Taxes-Preference | Shareholders (322.19)| 3325|  (322.09) | in net profitand
dividend (if any) | Equity shareholders equity
incremental decrease
Inventory turnover | Cost of goods in turmover compared
ratio (days) sold or Sales Avarage inventory 8580 81.10 T8.80 o marginal decrease
in inventory level
Teade Becslvable incremental decrease
= 2 . Average account in turnover compared
Elrn:;.rar Ratio Net Credit Sales Receivable 63.51 63.91 62.50 to marginal decrease
i in number of deblors
incremental decrease
Trade payables al
: Net Credit Average Trade in tumaver compared
E;;”‘f‘;;‘”’ ratio Purchases Payables 66.55 | 44.02 8589 | 1o marginal decrease
Y in number of creditors
MNet Capital :
Tiimover Ratio Nel Sales Working Capilal 6.67 5.83 5.80
Net Profit Ratio (%) | Nel Profit Net Sales (6.39) 261 0.44
Return on Capital | Earning before _
Employed et e e Capital Employed (32.37) 16.65 0.21
Income Average Invested
Lot generated from | fundsinTreasury | NA | NA NA
' invested funds Investments
23 (H)

The Company had no transactions with Companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or
section 560 of Companies Acl, 1956.

23 (1)

The Company does not have any immovable property in its name and hence reporting under clause 1 ( ¢ ) of the
order is not applicable.

23 (V)

Provision regarding with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 is not applicable to company as thare are no
such lransaction.,




Notes to Financial statements as at 31° March 2025

NOTE 23
Additional/ Explanatory Statements

K)

M)

N)

Commitment

(i) Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account, net of advances and not provided
for - Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs. Nil)

Contingent Liabilities not provided for:
(i) Guarantees given by the Banks-Nil (Previous Year - Nil/-)

The outstanding balances of Deblors, Creditors , Deposits and Loans & Advances are subject to Confirmation.

For Rajani Shah & Co. Atish N. Patel Naishadkumar N. Patel
Chartered Accounlants Managing Direclor Chairperson

Firm Reg.No.121126W DIN -00084015 DIN -00082749
Brijesh R, Shah Dhwani Shah Himanshu B. Bhol
Proprietor Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
Mem No. 109264 Mem. No, A23446

V U Nagar, Dated 30th May, 2025




Attendance Slip

ATTENDANCE SLIP

{To be handed over al the entrance)

iwe hereby record myfour presence at the 33" Annual General Meeting of the Adarsh Plant Protect Limited held on
Saturday, 27" September, 2025 at 11:00 a.m. at Plot No. 604, G.1.D.C., Vitthal Udyognagar, Anand — 388 121,

Gujarat, India.

Please complete attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the Meeting hall. Joint shareholders may
obtain additional slip, on request,

Attendance by (Please tick appropriate box) Name of Shareholder (S)

~ Member / Shareholder Address:

— Proxy

— Authorised Representative Folio no. /DP ID-Client 1D:
No. of Shares held:

Signature of Shareholder/ Proxy/ Authorised Representative
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VITHALBHAI CROSSING

DSWAL CROSSING

YADARSH

PLANT PROTECT LIMITED

604, G.1.D.C., VITTHAL UDYOGNAGAR - 388 121.
ANAND, GUJARAT (INDIA).
TEL : (D2682) 236705, 236706 « FAX : 236704
www.adarshplant.com E-mail : adarshplant@hotmail.com
info@adarshplant.com




Proxy Form

FORM NO. MGT-11_PROXY FORM

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

Name & Address of the Shareholder:

(In BLOCK Lelters)

E-mail Id: Registered Folio No.:
No. of Shares Held: DP ID- Client 1D:

If We
Plant Protect Limited, hevehy appoint

heing Member/ Members of Adarsh

1

Name

Reqislerad Address

Emall-id

Signature

or failing him/ her

Name

Registerad Address

Email-id

Signature

or failing him/ her

Name

Registered Address

Email-id

Signature

as my/ our Proxy to vote (on a poll) for me/ us and on my/ our behalf at 33" Annual General Meeting to be held on 27"
September, 2025 at 11:00 am at its Registered Office and al any adjournment thereaf in respect of all resolutions
proposed lo be passed therein as under: (please lick the appropriate column)




Proxy Form

Resolution Resolution Details | assent to | dissent
No. the from the
resolution resolution
Ordinary Business:
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Standalone Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31° March, 2025,
logether with the Reports of the Board of Direclors and the
Auditors thereon. (Ordinary Resolution)
2 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Naishad Patel
(DIN:00082749), Director who retire by rotation and being eligible,
offers herself for reappointment. (Ordinary Resolution)
3. To appoint Statutory Auditors and authorize Board of Directors to
fix theirremuneration. (Ordinary Resolution)
Special Business:
4, To approve continuation of Mr. Naishadkumar N. Patel (DIN:
00082749) as the Non-Executive Direclor of the Company.
(Special Resolution)
5. To approve Material Related Party Transactions of the
Company. (Special Resolution)
6. To appoint the Secretarial Auditor of the Company and authorize
Board of Directors to fix their remuneration. {Ordinary
Resolution)
Signed this day of , 2025
Signature of the shareholder
Affix One
Rupee
Revenue
Stamp




Proxy Form

Notes:

(a)

(b)

The Proxy must be lodged al the Regd. Office of the Company mentioned as above, not less than 48 hours
before the time of the Annual General Meeting.

The Proxy need not be a Member of the Company.

In case of joint holders, the vote of the senior who tenders a vote, whether in person or by proxy, shall be
accepted to the exclusion of the vote of the other joint-holders. Seniority shall be determined by the order in
which the names stand in the Register of Members.

This form of proxy confers authorily to demand or join indemanding a poll.

The submission by a Member of this form of proxy will not preclude such Member from attending in person
and voting at the Meeting.

Praxy No.: Dale of Receipt:

For Office Use
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